

IBM.

IBM Maximo Asset Management

QBR (Ad Hoc) Reporting and Report Object Structures 📠

This document provides details for the Maximo® 7.1.1 through 7.1.1.5 Releases of Ad Hoc Reporting known as Query Based Reporting (QBR). Information on the Maximo 7.1.1.6 and later versions is contained in a separate document downloadable from here http://ibm.co/NfUcOV

This guide reviews the QBR functionality and its process flow. It also details how users can Create and Execute Ad Hoc reports. It concludes with information on the setup work involved in enabling Ad Hoc reports, including administration and how to enable Report Object Structures.

© Copyright International Business Machines 2012

Table of Contents

Query Based Reports Overview	4
QBR - Creation/Execution Process	7
Create QBR: Select Tab	12
Select Tab: Query to use in the Report Section	13
Select Tab: Available Fields Section	15
Select Tab: Selected Fields Section	16
Create QBR: Sort Tab	21
Sort Tab: Grouping	22
Sort Tab: Sorting	24
Sort Tab: Miscellaneous Grouping and Sorting Notes:	25
Common Fields - All Three Tabs	26
Create QBR: Schedule Tab	27
Schedule Tab: Run Report Immediately	28
QBR Report Display Notes:	
QBR: Miscellaneous Report Title and Saving Notes:	31
QBR Report Execution	33
Executing from the Run Report Window	33
Deletion of the QBR when it is no longer required	34
Enabling Access for Other Security Groups	36
QBR - Security Access	
Best Practices - QBR Security Access	
Functionality - QBR Security Access	41
Miscellaneous Report Admin Features for QBR Reports	43
Extending Ad Hoc Reporting Functionality	45
Importing/Exporting and Report Design File Structure	45
Number of Rows in Select Tab of QBR Window	48
QBR - Development Process	49
Overview of ROS	50
Set up Work for Report Object Structures	51
Create Report Object Structures	52
Excluding Persistent Fields from Source Objects	60
What happens if a ROS for an Application is not defined	63
Best Practices Notes on Creating Report Object Structures	64
Define Database Joins and Cardinality	67
MAXRELATIONSHIP.CARDINALITY	69
MAXRELATIONSHIP.DBJOINREQUIRED	71
Notes on Database Joins and Cardinality	72
Associate ROS to Application	73
Notes on Associating ROS to Applications	75
Adding QBR Functionality to New or Cloned Applications	76

Notices	
Trademarks	86

Query Based Reports Overview

Query Based Reports (QBR) are enabled in V7 to meet the Ad-Hoc Reporting needs of users. QBRs enable users to create their own unique report by selecting columns, specifying sorting and grouping, and the query the report will run against. Once the user saves the report, this information is fed through an API to create an xml report design file, which is then executed thru the BIRT Report Engine.

This functionality is intended to enable users to create their own custom reports. This is critical for many reasons, including

- Enables users to quickly create their own reports for their unique business needs
- Does not require technical, development skills, like Java, to create the report
- Does not consume development hours in creating and maintaining large numbers of unique reports, which may only be used by a very small number of users

QBR's are often referred to as 'Ad Hoc' Reports, and the terminology is used interchangeably in this document. However, QBR's are different than traditional, enterprise reports for the reasons listed below.

How they are developed

Enterprise reports are developed by a developer in the BIRT Designer, versus QBR Reports are initiated by a user and created 'On the Fly' within the various applications.

Who uses them

Enterprise reports are developed for a large number of users, and are enabled for quick access. QBR reports are developed for a single user or business case, and are not designed for mass distribution.

Their complexity

Enterprise reports often involve complex sql, which has been optimized for performance, whereas QBR reports typically involve only single or few table joins.

Who has the ability to delete them

Enterprise reports can only be deleted by an administrator who has access to the Report Administration application, or the database. QBRs can be deleted either by the user who created the report, or by the administrator in the Report Administration application.

The Type of Security they have

Enterprise reports have group level security, where groups can be granted access at either an individual report level, or an application level. QBRs however are unique because they may be for a user's individual business needs, which may not want to be shared with others. Because of this requirement, QBR's utilize user level report security.

*Note: For best practice information on enabling QBR report access for your users, see the section titled 'Best Practices - QBR Security Access ' below.

Both Enterprise reports and Ad Hoc reports have their unique, individual business needs that they must meet. Enterprise reports are intended for access by high volumes of users, and their focus is on heavily formatted, detailed reports with complex sql code optimized for performance. Conversely, Ad Hoc reports are intended for access by a small number of users to meet their individual business needs. These use cases are often referred to as 'one off' business needs. Additionally, Ad Hoc reports are not optimized for formatting, as the assumption is that the user will determine the formatting of his report through individualized grouping and sorting, or exporting of the data to excel.

Because of their unique business needs, the process to develop an Enterprise report from an Ad Hoc report differs significantly.

The diagram below shows the stages that an Enterprise report goes through from Report Development, Administration and then Execution by a user. (Each of these steps is detailed in the V7 Report Feature Guide.)



The Report Design, along with its properties and xml file, are created in the BIRT Report Designer by a report developer. These files are then imported into the database. An administrator then utilizes the Report Administration application to set security access, and modify any property or application settings. Then, in the last stage, the user executes the report, and a single, highly formatted report is generated. Ad Hoc reports have a significantly different reporting process. Since the goal of Ad Hoc reporting is to enable the user to create his own report – meaning he determines what fields/sorting/grouping etc are included in his report. This frees up significant development time as the developer no longer is required to produce multiple design files for each individual report design.

The diagram below shows the stages that an Ad Hoc or QBR report goes through from Report Development and then Creation and Execution by the user. Please note that no Report Administration is required in these stages – the user simply creates his own individual reports on the fly.



The development base of QBR Reports is Report Object Structures (ROS). ROS contain the pre-joined tables of data that the user can select his report fields from. The ROS are created in the Object Structure application, and stored in the database. Since formatting of the Ad Hoc reports is left up to the individual user, the ROS only need to be focused on joining related tables. This saves significant development, administration and maintenance time. Then, when a user wants to create his own report, he inputs his requirements, and any number of different reports can be generated based on the application's single report object structure.

QBR - Creation/Execution Process

This document will begin by detailing how a user can Create and Execute Ad Hoc reports. This is the portion of the functionality that the largest number of users will access, and is highlighted in the circled portion of the diagram below.

The document will then conclude with details on the setup work involved in enabling Ad Hoc reports, including administration and how to enable Report Object Structures. This last portion is intended only for developers and/or administrators.



Before QBR reports can be executed, they must first be created. They can be created by business users, and require no knowledge of the database or complex report development tools. Once the QBR reports are created, they are accessed and executed like standard enterprise reports. The flow chart below illustrates the functionality that will be detailed in creating and then executing the QBR reports.



Create QBR: Access

As noted above, QBR reports must first be created before they can be executed. QBR reports can be created by an individual user for his unique business need, or by a supervisor or manager, who wants to create reports to share with a number of different individuals. The individual who creates the QBR report is identified as the owner of the QBR. These next pages detail the steps involved in creating an Ad Hoc report.

To access the Create QBR functionality, users can go to two different places within an application.

(1) Person icon in the toolbar menu or

(2) Create Report Button in the bottom section of the Reports Window. The Reports Window is accessed from the application's Action Menu.

These two locations are highlighted using the Purchase Order application as an example below.

Purcha	se Orders		Bulletins: (0)
	Find:	💌 Select Action 🔍 🐌 🗊 🥑 🧇 🌾 🛟 🔨 🗸 🔀) [2 2
List F	O PO Lines Ship To / Bill To	Terms and Conditions Specifications	
Advanced	Search 🔻 🗟 Save Query 🔻 🛷 Bo	📮 Reports	
POs 🛛 💙 Filte <u>PO</u>	r > dRa ∰ ♦ ● ♦ 1 - 20 of 86 → <u>Description</u>		. <u>Company</u>
1000	Store Replenishment	Select a report from the list, or click Create Report to create an ad hoc report.	ATI
1004	1 Inch ID Copper Tubing	On Demand Departs Scheduling Status	ATI
<u>1005</u>	Electrical Supplies	On Demand Reports Scheduling Status	GCE
1008	Refurbishment of Turbine	Reports to Run 🔗 Filter 🚜 📁 🛊 🦆 🗢 1 - 5 of 8 🥪 🛐 Download 🔅 🚍	BWC
1009	100 gpm Pump	Description	IR
1010	General Plumbing Supplies		HELWIG
<u>1011</u>	Plumbing Supplies	PO Status Details	HELWIG
<u>1012</u>	General Contractors for Misc. Activities	Purchase Order Details Report Purchase Order List	CHESTER
<u>1013</u>	Window and installation for ot building	Vendor Performance Vendor Performance By Item	JK
<u>1015</u>	Request for Tubing		
1016	100 gpm Pump		HELWIG
1017	Seals for Central Storeroom	Create Report Cancel	ATI
1021			KENNED'
1000		1000	Methoday -

Notes on Accessing QBR Functionality:

1. The ability to Create New QBRs is only available from within an Application. It is not available from the Report Menu. This is because this functionality is dependent on displaying application values.

- Therefore, if a user accesses reports via the Report Menu in the top right hand corner, the Ad Hoc Report Functionality (Create Report Button) will not be available on that Report Window.
- This is shown below with a screen shot from the Start Center. Because the Start Center is not an application, if the user clicks on Reports from the top Menu, the Create Report Functionality is not available.
- Likewise, if a User was in the Asset application, and from the top Report Menu, selected Reports > Work Orders, the Create Report in the Report Menu for Work Order would not be available. It would only be available for Asset - the application the user is currently in.

	nt/Layout GB Display Settings The Create New Template 26 Modify Existing Tem	plate 행용 (Update
	Reports		
		Actual	Targe
I Report Jobs (0	99
	Reports to Run # Filter > dt = + # + 1 - 5 of 7 # Et <u>Download</u> ? = <u>Description</u>		
	Bob's PO Report Grouped by Site and	1	
	Bob's PO Report Grouped by Site and Company		
	Bob's PO Report Grouped by Site and Image: Company Company Image: Company Liberi's PO Analysis of ATI Image: Company PO Status Details Image: Company		
	Bob's PO Report Grouped by Site and Company Liberi's PO Analysis of ATI PO Status Details Purchase Order Details Report Dechase Order Details Report	-	
	Bob's PO Report Grouped by Site and Company Liber's PO Analysis of ATI PO Status Details Purchase Order Details Report Purchase Order List		

2. The Create Report Icon will vary in its exact location on the application's toolbar – depending on the application it is accessed from via the business rules below.

A. If an application has individual report icons configured (ex. Direct Print a or Browser View) the Create Report Button will be located BEFORE the individual report icons.

Assets								<u>B</u> ulletins: (0)	<u>5</u> o To
	Find:	Å 🔻	Select Action	v 🕽	ज्ञे 🖉 । 🐳	🌼 🛟 🎭 🏠	20		9
List Asset	Spare Parts	Safety	Meters	Specifications	Features	Relationships	1	V	
M Advanced Search	n 🔻 🗟 Save Query	🗸 🖉 Bookman	ks			/	-		
I THE REAL	nn 1 - 1 - 1 - 1								

B. If no Report Icons are configured, the 'Create Report' Icon will display as the last of the application tool bar icons.

- 	Locations			🛿 📴 <u>B</u> ulletins: (0) 👘 <u>G</u> o To
	Find:	🕅 🔝 Select Action	💌 🎝 🖬 🧶 I 🍬 🔶 I	
	st Location Assets	History Safety Meters	Specifications	
的	Advanced Search 🔻 记 Save Query	🔻 🛷 Bookmarks	-	
Loc	ations 🛛 🍟 Filter 🛛 🚓 🛛 🚍 🖙 🐳 🖙			

C. However, if an application has Workflow Options enabled, the workflow icons will reside between the Create Report Icon and the Report Toolbar Icons.

	Find:	💏 🔝 Select Action	💌 🐌 🔒 🧶 I 🌳	👻 i 😂 i 😂 i 😗 🔞) < I 🖓 I 🖓 📖 💈 🖄	
List	Incident Activities	Related Records Solution De	etails Log Failure Re	eporting Specifications	/	\sim
MA Adv	anced Search 🔻 🗟 Save Quer	y 🔻 🔗 Bookmarks				
Inciden	ts 🛛 😴 Filter 🤊 🏠 🖓 🖓 🔶 +	44				

3. The Create Report Icon is available on any of the tabs within the applications.

Create QBR: Select Tab

When the user clicks on the Create Button, a new window displays. This is the window the user will utilize to create his unique report, and is often referred to as the QBR Wizard or QBR Window. The QBR Window contains three subtabs - Select, Sort and Schedule - opens to the first tab, Select.

The select tab consists of three sections, which are

- 1. Query to Use in the Report
- 2. Available Fields Section, Including Drill Down Tree
- 3. Selected Fields Section

elect	Sort	Schedule				
To app box. T Select availa object	ply the query The query the fields ble, expa	ery and filter from t is saved to the rep s you want to includ nd the drilldown on	he curr ort, and de in yc the lefi	rent application to your report, d the report uses this saved qu our report by using the arrow i t. You can select only one cate	select the Apply the Current uery every time that you run cons. To see all of the categ egory that contains a multiple	Query and Filter check the report. ories and fields that are relationship to the main
ry to Use Apply the	in the R Current (eport Query and Filter fro	m the A	Application? 🔽 🗲	1	
] EPurcha	se Order		Ava	ilable Fields 🕴 🌶 Filter 🧃	🗊 🛊 👙 🐳 1 - 10 of 39	
	ompanie: ines		() 	Field Description	<u>Field Value</u> +	
D PO	Line Item	15	4	Bill To	BILLTO	
D PO	Costs		4	Attention	BILLTOATTN	
🔄 🔳 PO T	erms	2	4	Buy Ahead Rate	BUYAHEAD	
			4	Buyer Company	BUYERCOMP	ANY
			4	Changed By	CHANGEBY	
			4	Changed Date	CHANGEDATE	6
			4	Contact	CONTACT	
			4	Contract Reference	CONTRACTRE	FNUM
3	i.		4	Contract Revision	CONTRACTR	FREV
			4	Release #	CONTRELEAS	ESEQ
						Add All
ected Field	ls 👂 F	iller 👬 🛛 🖾 🛛 🛊	9 4	1 - 7 of 7 🧇		Download 2
Colur	nn Order	Report Label			Field Value	Category
	1	PO		1	PONUM	Purchase Order
	2	Description			DESCRIPTION	Purchase Order
	3	Status			STATUS	Purchase Order
	4	Follow-up Date			FOLLOWUPDATE	Purchase Order
	5	Company			VENDOR	Purchase Order
	6	Total Cost			TOTALCOST	Purchase Order
	-	03-			CITEID.	Burchase Order

Select Tab: Query to use in the Report Section

In the first section of the Select Tab, a checkbox is displayed.

Query to Use in the Report

Apply the Current Query and Filter from the Application?

This checkbox enables the user the option to apply their existing query and filters from an application or not.

- If the user enables the checkbox, the application's current query and filter will be saved to the report. Whenever the report executes, it will always execute with that applied query. This is the default value.
- If the user does not enable the checkbox, the application's current guery and filter will Not be saved to the report.

This functionality is described below with an example of enabling the Query Flag in the PO Application.

A. Bob goes to the PO application, and opens to his saved guery named BEDFORD_PO. The BEDFORD_PO query has a where clause of ...where (siteid like '%BEDFORD%')

B. Bob then applies a filter of appr in the status field on the PO list tab. His application's sql where clause is updated to

....where (BEDFORD_PO Query) + (Application Filter) Which is also described as ((siteid like '%BEDFORD%')) and ((status like '%APPR%'))

C. Bob creates a QBR report and wants it to ALWAYS execute against both the saved query + filter. To do this, he

- 1. Enables the 'Apply the Current Query and Filter from the Application'.
- 2. Saves his report to something he will guickly recognize as 'Bedford APPR POs'.

When the report is saved, the application's current where clause (query + filter) is saved in the sql of the report design as shown below.

((siteid like '%BEDFORD%')) and ((status like '%APPR%'))

Whenever Bob executes his 'Bedford APPR POs' Report in the future, it will ALWAYS apply the saved where clause ((siteid like '%BEDFORD%')) and ((status like '%APPR%')) to the report's results.

Next, a scenario where the Query Flag is NOT enabled is described.

A. Bob is in the PO application, and opens to his saved query BEDFORD_PO. He applies the same filter of appr in the status field.

B. Bob creates a new QBR report, but does **NOT** want it to ALWAYS execute against the combination of his current query + filter. Instead, he wants the report to dynamically pick up the active query and filter from the application at the time he executes the report. Therefore, he....

1. Does NOT Enable the 'Apply the Current Query and Filter from the Application'

2. Saves the report as 'Bob's PO Report'.

When the report is saved, the application's current where clause (query + filter) is **NOT** saved in the sql of the report design. Instead, only Bob's Field Selection is saved, along with any database joins, sorting and grouping he selected.

C. Two days later, Bob goes back to the PO application. He opens up to one of his saved application's queries of POCLOSE, which has a where clause of...where status = 'CLOSE'

D. Bob filters on 'BOB' in the buyer field on the list tab and his sql where clause becomes

.....where (status like '%CLOSE%') and (purchaseagent like '%BOB%')

E. Bob then wants to run his 'Bob's PO Report' against this current record set. So, he executes the report, and since the 'Save Application's Current Query' Flag WAS not enabled (applied) to the saved report, the report accepts the current, dynamic filter from the application which is

.....where (status like '%CLOSE%') and (purchaseagent like '%BOB%')

The report does NOT use the where clause from the application at the time the report was saved 2 days previously which was...where wostatus = 'APPR' and wopriority = '1'

Each of these options supports multiple use cases, so it will be up to the user creating each individual QBR if he wants to apply the Application Current Query and Filter - or not.

Select Tab: Available Fields Section

The second section of the Select Tab is the Available Fields section. On the right side, the available fields a user can add to his report display. On the left, a category tree drilldown displays. Categories are groupings of fields that are related via max relationships. These categories are configurable, and will vary significantly by application.

Categories enable the user to select fields for his report from multiple tables or objects. They are designed to enable the user to visualize the categories and their parent/child relationships. These report categories are defined in the Integration - Object Structure Application as Report Object Structures (ROS). More details on creating these are contained at the end of this document.

Continuing with our example, the Parent Category is Purchase Order. This parent has multiple children (PO Companies, PO Lines and PO Terms), and 1 set of grandchildren under PO Lines (PO Line Items, PO Costs). The user can scroll through these categories to add the fields he wants for his individual report.

🖃 🗏 Purchase Order 🔸	Available Fields -> Filter > (//	🗆 🍦 🤞 🐳 1 - 10 of 39 👙 📑 <u>Download</u> ? 🚍
PO Companies PO Lines	Field Description	Field Value =
PO Lines PO Line Items PO Costs	🗸 Bill To	BILLTO
	Attention	BILLTOATTN
PO Terms	Buy Ahead Rate	BUYAHEAD
	Buyer Company	BUYERCOMPANY
	Changed By	CHANGEBY
	Changed Date	CHANGEDATE
	Contact	CONTACT
	Contract Reference	CONTRACTREFNUM
	Contract Revision	CONTRACTREFREV
	Release #	CONTRELEASESEQ
	and a second sec	

Add All

When the user clicks on the parent level category, it expands to show all of its children. If a child does not have any children, no further drilldowns will be available. If a child has additional children, parent's grandchildren, they will visually display with the + icon. This is standard Maximo-based Drilldown display. Multiple children-grandchildren relationships can be configured.

The user can add fields to his report by using the arrow icon next to each field. Additionally, he can 'Add All' or 'Deselect All' of the Fields at once to add or remove fields in mass.

Standard filtering capability is enabled on (1) Field Description or (2) Field Value to help the user quickly find his values. Also note that the 'Available Fields' and 'Selected Fields' Section scroll independently of each other. For example, if the user is scrolling through the Selected Fields Section, the Available Fields Section will stay as is.

Select Tab: Selected Fields Section

To save the user time and clicks, all of the persistent fields from the Application's List Page display in the Selected Field section by default. Because these fields are the most-heavily used fields in an application, this will save the user time from having to add these fields each time he wants to create a report.

In the PO Application, there are 7 persistent fields on the list tab (PO, Description, Status, Follow-up Date, Company, Total Cost and Site) as highlighted by the red arrows.

	Find: Select Action	on 🛛 💌 🐌 🗊 🧶 💷 🔍	🕽 🔿 🗸 🗶 🛯 🛛	3 8			
List P	0 PO Lines Ship To / Bill To Terms a	ind Conditions Specifications					
Ma Advanced	Search 🔻 🗟 Save Query 👻 🛷 Bookmarks						
POs Filter	r > 🚜 📳 🔶 🤣 🐳 1 - 20 🗨 88 🌩		1	1	1	1 10	Download ? =
<u>PO</u>	Description	Status	Follow-up Date	Company	Total Cost	Site	
2		appr 🖉		1		=BEDFORD	ρ
1000	Store Replenishment	APPR		ATI	1,264.20	BEDFORD	40
1004	1 Inch ID Copper Tubing	APPR		ATI	78.22	BEDFORD	
1005	Electrical Supplies	WAPPR		GCE	498.75	BEDFORD	

When the user opens up the Query Window, each of these persistent fields has been automatically added to the Selected Field Section for the user.

Purchase Order		Available Fields 🛛 🌢 Filter	🔆 🗦 🗧 🔶 🍑 🖕 1 - 10 of 39	Province (2)
	O Companies O Lines	Field Description	Field Value 🕈	
PO Terms		👙 Bill To	BILLTO	
		4 Attention	BILLTOATTN	
		Buy Ahead Rate	BUYAHEAD	
		Buyer Company	BUYERCOMP	ANY
		🗸 Changed By	CHANGEBY	
		Changed Date	CHANGEDAT	
		Contact	CONTACT	
		Contract Reference	CONTRACTRE	FNUM
		Contract Revision	CONTRACTRE	FREV
		Release #	CONTRELEAS	ESEQ
_		121 + + + + + - 7 of 7 +		Add
ected F	ields 🚺 Filter > 🙌			
ected F Co	ields Filier > M	abel	Field Value	Category
ected F Co	blumn Order Report L	abel	Field Value PONUM	Category Purchase Order
ected F Co	ields Filter Dumn Order Report L 1 PO 2 Descript	Label	Field Value PONUM DESCRIPTION	Category Purchase Order Purchase Order
ected F Co	ields Filter Aport L Jumn Order Report L 1 PO 2 Descript 3 Status	abel	Field Value PONUM DESCRIPTION STATUS	Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order
ected F Co	ields Filter > 0 olumn Order Report L 1 PO 2 Descript 3 Status 4 Follow-u	Label	Field Value PONUM DESCRIPTION STATUS FOLLOWUPDATE	Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order
ected F Co	Telds Filter Dumn Order Report L 1 PO 2 Descript 3 Status 4 Follow-t 5 Compan	up Date	Field Value PONUM DESCRIPTION STATUS FOLLOWUPDATE VENDOR	Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order
ected F Cr	felds Filter olumn Order Report L 1 PO 2 Descript 3 Status 4 Follow-t 5 Compan 6 Total Co	Label tion up Date yy	Field Value PONUM DESCRIPTION STATUS FOLLOWUPDATE VENDOR TOTALCOST	Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order

The user is able to quickly navigate through the Available Fields Section, to see what fields are available to add to his report. He can navigate through the Drilldown Category on the left, and select any children or grandchildren categories. When selecting a new category, the Available Fields window will refresh with the fields from the new category. Additionally, the highlighted category will be visualized by a blue text color in the drilldown window.

Purchase Order	Available Fields 🛛 🤌 Filter 🛛 🖓 👘 🗐 🛉	2 Download 2
PO Companies PO Lines	Field Description	Field Value *
PO Terms	🗸 Asset	ASSETNUM
	🚚 Catalog #	CATALOGCODE
	Category	CATEGORY
	Charge to Store	CHARGESTORE
	Class Structure	CLASSSTRUCTUREID
	Commodity Code	COMMODITY
	Commodity Group	COMMODITYGROUP
	Condition Code	CONDITIONCODE
	Contract Reference	CONTRACTREFNUM
	Contract Reference Revision	CONTRACTREFREV

Additionally, the user can filter for result. When the results display, the user can add individual fields by using the down arrows next to the Field Description, or use the 'Add All' Button to add all of the fields from his Filtered Query to the Selected Field section below.

In this example, the user filtered on 'line' and then adds the PO Line Number field to the Selected Fields. This action causes the followings

- A. Adds the new field(s) to the end of the Selected Field List.
- B. Displays the field's category on the right of the Selected Field section
- C. Removes the selected field from the Available Field Section.

		Available Fields 🛛 💗 Filter 🖓 🎒	n i∳ ∳ i⇔ 1 - 5 of 5 ⇒ El, <u>Download</u> i? i			
PO Companies		Field Description	Field Value			
PO Line Item	1	line				
PO Costs		Contract Reference Line ID CONTREFLINEID				
🔄 📕 PO Terms		🗸 Line Cost	LINECOST			
		🜲 Line Type	LINETYPE			
		Requisition Line	MRLINENUM			
		Received Line Cost	RECEIVEDTOTAL	COST		
elected Fields	lier X 🐘 📋 🔒		Field Value	C. Download ?		
elected Fields	Report Label	🤞 🛶 1 - 8 of 8 🔸	Field Value	Category Purchase Order		
elected Fields.	Report Label PO Description	4 + 1 - 8 of 8 +	Field Value PONUM DESCRIPTION	Category Purchase Order Purchase Order		
elected Fields Fields Column Order	Report Label PO Description Status	↓ → 1 - 8 of 8 →	Field Value PONUM DESCRIPTION STATUS	Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order		
elected Fields Fields Column Order	Report Label PO Description Status Follow-up Date	↓ + 1 - 8 of 8 →	Field Value PONUM DESCRIPTION STATUS FOLLOWUPDATE	Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order		
elected Fields Fields Column Order	Report Label PO Description Status Follow-up Date Company	4 + 1 - 8 of 8 +	Field Value PONUM DESCRIPTION STATUS FOLLOWUPDATE VENDOR	Download ? Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order		
elected Fields	Report Label PO Description Status Follow-up Date Company Total Cost	4 + 1 - 8 of 8 +	Field Value PONUM DESCRIPTION STATUS FOLLOWUPDATE VENDOR TOTALCOST	Download ? Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order		
elected Fields F	Report Label PO Description Status Follow-up Date Company Total Cost Site	↓ + 1 - 8 of 8 →	Field Value PONUM DESCRIPTION STATUS FOLLOWUPDATE VENDOR TOTALCOST SITEID	Download Category Purchase Order		

Note: When adding fields to the Selected Field Category, the user must follow the hierarchical structure of the ROS. This means that the user has to follow the relationships of selecting fields from the parent, the child and then the grandchild. A user can not add fields from the parent category and then the grandchild - as there is no direct relationship between the parent and the grandchild. If he tries to do this, the error below will display:

Image: Policy of the learning
Image: Control literal set in the s
PO Costs Item ITEMNUM Item Set TEMSETID Item Type TEMTYPE BMXAA70311- Before you select fields from a category, you must select at least one field from its parent category.
BPC Terms tem Set TEMSETID tem Type TEMTYPE BMXAA70311 - Before you select fields from a category, you must select at least one field from its parent category.
tem Type ITEMTYPE System Message BMXAA70311- Before you select fields from a category, you must select at least one field from its parent category.
System Message BMXAA70311 - Before you select fields from a category, you must select at least one field from its parent category.
Field Value Categ
PONOM PUIC
2 Department DECODITION Durch
2 Description DESCRIPTION Purch
2 Description DESCRIPTION Purch 3 Status STATUS Purch 4 Selfum up Date SOULOW/UPDATE Durch
2 Description DESCRIPTION Purch 3 Status STATUS Purch 4 Follow-up Date FOLLOWUPDATE Purch 5 Generative VENDOR Purch
2 Description DESCRIPTION Purch 3 Status STATUS Purch 4 Follow-up Date FOLLOWUPDATE Purch 5 Company VENDOR Purch

Note 2: This same logic applies if the user is going to remove fields from the Selected Field Section. Using the example above, if fields are added to the Selected Field Section from the

PO Parent

PO Lines Child PO Line Items Grandchild

The user can *not* remove fields from the PO Lines Child and only leave fields from PO Parent and PO Line Items Grandchild.

PO Parent

PO Lines Child PO Line Items Grandchild

Deleting the parent from the report causes an error because there is no direct relationship between the PO Parent and the PO Line Items Grandchild. At least one field from the PO Lines Child must be maintained in the report to build the table relationships correctly. The user can continue to add more fields to his QBR Report until he has the complete listing he needs. In this example, Item Number from PO Line Items and Line Cost from the PO Costs Categories were added.

C	olumn Order	Report Label	Field Value	Category
1	1	PO	PONUM	Purchase Order
	2	Description	DESCRIPTION	Purchase Order
r'	3	Status	STATUS	Purchase Order
r.	4	Follow-up Date	FOLLOWUPDATE	Purchase Order
20	5	Company	VENDOR	Purchase Order
P	6	Total Cost	TOTALCOST	Purchase Order
1	7	Site	SITEID	Purchase Order
r i	8 Line		POLINENUM	PO Lines
М	9	Item Number	ITEMNUM	PO Line Items
1	10	Line Cost	LINECOST	PO Costs

Additionally, the user can change the Column Order and/or Report Label. To do this, the user types in the new value directly in the applicable text box. After changes are made, the user must click refresh in order for any column order changes to take effect. The order that the columns are displayed after the refresh will always be in ascending order of the Column Order field.

An example of why a user may want to change the Report Label is when fields from different categories have the same Field Value. (For example, Description exists in both PO and PO Line). The user creating the report may want to distinguish these 2 fields by overriding the two Default Description Values with something like PO Description and/or PO Line Description.

Create QBR: Sort Tab

Once the user has all the fields he wants in his Ad Hoc report, he goes to the second tab, Sort, shown below. The Sort tab was introduced in Version 7.1.1.4.

You can define t categories, whic You can also so	wo levels of grouping in your report. You de h help you quickly evaluate the data. t the report data in ascending or descendin	efine groups by fields to combine the report data into similar g order.
Grouping		
Group First By: And Then By:	Category	Report Label
Sorting		Remove All
Sort First By: And Then By:	Category	Report Label
	Report Title	Save Report?

The sort tab is optional. There is no requirement that this functionality be used in a QBR report. Additionally, there are no requirements that both Grouping and Sorting must be done together.

- The user can choose to Group his report only, or Sort his report only.
- If the user chooses both Grouping and Sorting, either function can be defined first. For example, Grouping does not have to be defined before Sorting.

To enable the sorting and grouping functionality however, the user must first have added columns to his QBR Report in the Select Tab. If the user tries to sort and group before adding any fields in the Select Tab, no fields will be available to him to choose from.

Sort Tab: Grouping

This first section in the Sort Tab is Grouping. Within this section, the user is able to select two Groupings. Both are optional and are defined as Null by Default. To enable a grouping, the user has to select a field via the Report Label Lookup. Values can not be directly typed in.

Because of the potential for a large number of available fields to choose from, a dynamic lookup is used on the Grouping and Sorting Category Fields. This lookup <u>only</u> displays the fields that the user identified as 'Selected Fields' in the 'Select' Tab.



Notes:

1. Multi-select option is not available on the lookup as it is not known if the field is for the first grouping or second.

2. This lookup is derived dynamically for each QBR. Additionally, the fields in the lookup are non-persistent, so the lookup and values are not sort-able or filter-able.

Two fields can be enabled for grouping.

The first grouping must be defined before the second. To enable this, the second grouping field is disabled until the first grouping is applied.

After the grouping selection(s) is made, the user can choose to have the grouped fields display in ascending or descending order. The default is to have the flag enabled, so the results are grouped in ascending order. The screen shot below shows the first grouping to be by Site in ascending order, and a second grouping by Company in descending order.

 You can define two levels of grouping in your report. You define groups by fields to combine the report data into similar category which help you quickly evaluate the data. You can also sort the report data in ascending or descending order. Category Report Label Group First By: Purchase Order And Then By: Purchase Order Company 	nding?
Category Report Label Group First By: Purchase Order And Then By: Purchase Order Company Ascentiation	nding?
Category Report Label Group First By: Purchase Order Site Parchase Order And Then By: Purchase Order Company Asce	nding?
Group First By: Purchase Order Site Asce And Then By: Purchase Order Company Asce	nding?
And Then By: Purchase Order Company	
	nding?
	emove All
ning	
Category Report Label	
Sort First By:	nding?
And Then By: Asce	nding?
	emove All

Sort Tab: Sorting

The second section in the Sorting Tab is Sorting. Sorting will follow the same process as grouping, meaning that the fields to be sorted will be selected off the lookup. If two fields need to be sorted, the user will access the lookup twice.

The Report Label lookup that is used in the Sorting and Grouping Section is the same.

The first sorting must be defined before the second. To enable this, the second sorting will be disabled until the first grouping is enabled.

Users can add the same field in the Sorting Section that is in the Grouping Section. If the user specifies a different sort order than the grouping order specifies, the grouping order will take precedence.

In the example below, after the grouping was defined, the user selected to sort the data by PO Number in ascending order.

Query Based Report						
Select Sort	Schedule					
You can def which help y You can also	ine two levels of grouping in your report. Yo rou quickly evaluate the data. o sort the report data in ascending or desce	ou define groups by fields to combine the nding order.	report data into similar categories,			
rouping	Category	Deport Labe	1			
Group First By:	Purchase Order	Site	Ascending?			
And Then By:	Purchase Order	Company	Ascending?			
			Remove All			
orting						
	Category	Report Labe				
Sort First By:	Purchase Order	PO	🔎 Ascending? 🗸			
And Then By:			🔎 Ascending? 🗸			
			Remove All			
	Report Title		Save Report?			
			Close Window?			

Sort Tab: Miscellaneous Grouping and Sorting Notes:

- Grouping of report data is an extremely valuable concept which enables the user to view data quickly and concisely in multiple categories. However, certain data types lend themselves more to groupings than others. For example, data fields with time values may be very difficult to group on due to the wide variation in time values.
 - a. However, we do not want to limit the data types that users group on, therefore no limitations have been placed on the data types that can be grouped.
- 2. Only two grouping and two sorting sections are enabled out of the box. This was determined after analyzing the numbers of groupings and sorting over 300 Maximo Reports, along with balancing the client input in minimizing the complexity of the QBR Functionality. If this does not meet the individual needs of a client, they can modify the code for a larger set of groupings is required.

3. The sort order from an application is not applied to the QBR report. If the user wants to apply the same sort order that was enabled in the application, he must explicitly specify it on the SORT tab within the QBR window.

<u>Common Fields - All Three Tabs</u>

Before reviewing the Schedule tab, it is important to review the bottom fields that are displayed on all three Tabs. At the very bottom of each tab are two buttons: Cancel and Submit. At any time during the QBR Creation Process, the user can select either of these buttons.

<u>CANCEL</u>: Cancels cancel the report creation process and close the QBR Window.

<u>SUBMIT</u>: Takes the report inputs and passes them to the report engine. The report will be generated and displayed to the user in HTML.

Directly above the Cancel and Submit button are the Report Title and Save fields. These fields are optional and can be used if a user wants to save the QBR Report for execution in the future. These three fields include:

<u>Report Title</u>: The Report Title that appears at the top of the report. It is also the text displayed to the user when he clicks 'Run Reports'. It is typically a value that is meaningful to the user, and enables him to quickly identify the report in the future.

- By default, this value is null.
- It is identified in the database as REPORT.DESCRIPTION.
- If the user enables the Save Report? Field, the Report Title is required.

<u>Save Report?</u> This field enables the user to save his unique report inputs as a report design file. Often a user may need to execute his unique report on a regular basis, or may want to share it with others. In these cases, the user should save his report. Saving the report creates multiple database table entries including:

- 1. REPORT, for report details including the userid of the person creating the QBR
- 2. REPORTDESIGN for the created XML Report Design File
- 3. REPORTLABEL with the Report File Name and Column Descriptions
- 4. REPORTDEPEND for the Maximo System Libraries

In other cases however, a user may only need a report for a single instance, or he may still be in processing of determining the best content for the report. In these two use cases, the user will choose to not Save their report.

<u>Close Window?</u>: The 'Close Window?' field enables the user to close all report dialogs after executing his report.

- If the user chooses to enable the 'Close Window?' field, after the report executes in the browser, the user will return to V7 and all reporting windows will be closed.
- If the user chooses to NOT enable the 'Close Window?' field after the report executes in the browser, the user will return to V7 and the QBR Window and report window will still be open.

The default for 'Close Window' is

Enabled if the User Saves his Report Not-Enabled if the User does not Save his Report

Create QBR: Schedule Tab

The last tab in the QBR Window is the Schedule Tab. It contains scheduling and emailing options. These fields behave the same way as the Scheduling/Emailing Options on an Enterprise Report's Request Page. The immediate Run Option is displayed by default.

To run your report imme time. To schedule the re You can add a title for y appear in the Report Wi	diately, click Submit. To sched port to run on a recurring basi our report that appears on the ndow Listing.	ule a report to run at a sp s, select the Recurring op e report. Click Save Repor	pecific time, select the At this Time option and specify a ption and specify an interval. rt to run your report in the future. Your report will	
Schedule				j.
Immediate At this Time Recurring	iii P			
-mail				-
To Subject Comments				
	Report Title		Save Report?]

Schedule Tab: Run Report Immediately

Continuing with our example, the user names his report 'Bob's PO Report Grouped by Site and Company', and saves the report.

					E.	1 ?
Select Sort S	chedule					
To run your report im time. To schedule the You can add a title fo appear in the Report	nediately, click Submit. To report to run on a recurrin r your report that appears Window Listing.	schedule a report to ri ig basis, select the Re on the report. Click Sa	un at a specific time, curring option and sp ave Report to run you	select the At this Tin ecify an interval. r report in the future	ne option and specify . Your report will	y a
Inmediate At this Time Recurring	B					
nail						
To		P				
Subject						
Subject Comments						

He chooses to run the report immediately and the report queue is checked to see if there is availability. If there is availability, the report will execute immediately and display in the report browser.

neporting									
ge 1 of 1 I≪I	() () () () () () () () () () () () () (
oli b's PO Report Groupe	ed by Site and Co	ompany						1	BN
Site: BEDFORI	0		Company: SWKING						
PO			Description	Status	Follow-up Date	Total Cost	Line	Item	Line
1077		Ad	obe Software Contract	APPR		12,300.00	1	ACROBAT_8	12,30
Site: BEDFORE	b		Company: OFFRUS						
PO			Description	Status	Follow-up Date	Total Cost	Line	Item	Line
1024				APPR		5.00	1	584-L0	anararan
1026			•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	APPR		2.50	1	231177	
1026			•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	APPR		2.50	2	231177	
1026			•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	APPR		2.50	3	230-00	
1027				APPR		11.70	1	0-0514	1
Site: BEDFORI	5		Company: KENNEDY						
PO			Description	Status	Follow-up Date	Total Cost	Line	Item	Line
1021				APPR		0.00	1	560-00	1
1022				APPR		6.19	2	0-0031	
1022				APPR		6.19	1	900810	
1023				APPR		0.00	1	584-L0	
Site: BEDFORI	b °		Company: JK						
20					Follow-up	T. 10 .		220	12
200	14/1-	I	Description	Status	Date	TOLAT COST	Line	Item	Line
1013	Wini	ow and installa	tion for office building	WAPPR		499.20	1	1002	10
1013	Wini	low and installa	tion for once building	WAPPR		499.20	·····2	1000	48
1023	Wind	ow and installat	ion for Office Building	APPR		499.20	·····	1002	40
1023	wind	iow and installat	ion for once Building	APPR		499.20			48
01 0CDC007									

Note: For more information on Report Queuing, reference the V7 Report Feature Guide.

When the report is displayed in the browser, standard reporting functionality is available. This includes converting to pdf for saving or printing, downloading to csv or navigating through the pages of results. If the report is converted to pdf, it displays as follows:

s PO Report Gro	uped by Site and Company						
Site: BEDFORD	Company: SWKENG						
			Followaup				
PO	Description	Status	Date	Total Cost	Line	Item	Line Co.
1077	Adobe Software Contract	APPR		12,300.00	1	ACROBAT_8	12,300.
Site: BEDFORD	Company: OFFRUS						
			Follow-up				
PO	Description	Status	Date	Total Cost	Line	Item	Line Co
1024		APPR		5.00	1	584-L0	5.0
1026		APPR		2.50	1	231177	0.0
1026		APPR		2.50	2	231177	0.0
1026		APPR		2.50	3	230-00	2.5
1027		APPR		11.70	1	0-0514	11.7
Site: BEDFORD	Company: KENNEDY						
PO	Description	Status	Follow-up Date	Total Cost	Line	Item	Line Co:
1021		APPR	1001000	0.00	1	560-00	0.0
1022		APPR		6.19	2	0-0031	2.5
1822		APPR		6.19	1	900810	3.0
1023		APPR		0.00	1	584-L0	0.0
Siter BEDFORD	Company: 3K						
22	925 - 3 1 940	12101	Follow-up	0202202		100	100.00
PO	Description	Status	Date	Total Cost	Line	Item	Line Co.
1013	Window and Installation for office building	WAPPR		499.20	1	1002	0.0
1013	window and installation for othe building	WAPPK		499.20	2	1000	480.0
1029	Window and installation for Office Building	APPR		499.20		1002	480.0
1923	minow and matalation at once balling	APTK		479.20			400.0
Site: BEDFORD	Company: IR						
PO	Description	Status	Follow-up	Total Cost	Line	Item	Line Co
1009	100 gpm Pump	APPR		6.784.00	1	PUMP100	6.400.0

If the report is downloaded to csv, it displays as shown below. Please note that the grouping format is not transferred to csv.

2	SnagIt 🔄 V	Vindow	× +							
	A1	+	f _x por	um						
	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	I	J
1	ponum	description	status	followupdo	vendor	totalcost	siteid 🛛	polinenum	itemnum	linecost
2	1077	Adobe Soft	APPR		SWKING	12300	BEDFORD	1	ACROBAT_	12300
3	1024		APPR		OFFRUS	5	BEDFORD	1	584-L0	5
4	1026		APPR		OFFRUS	2.5	BEDFORD	1	231177	0
5	1026		APPR		OFFRUS	2.5	BEDFORD	2	231177	0
6	1026		APPR		OFFRUS	2.5	BEDFORD	3	230-00	2.5
7	1027		APPR		OFFRUS	11.7	BEDFORD	1	0-0514	11.7
8	1021		APPR		KENNEDY	0	BEDFORD	1	560-00	0
9	1022		APPR		KENNEDY	6.19	BEDFORD	2	0-0031	2.5
10	1022		APPR		KENNEDY	6.19	BEDFORD	1	900810	3.69
11	1023		APPR		KENNEDY	0	BEDFORD	1	584-L0	0
12	1013	Window and	WAPPR		JK	499.2	BEDFORD	1	1002	0
13	1013	Window and	WAPPR		JK	499.2	BEDFORD	2		480
14	1029	Window and	APPR		JK	499.2	BEDFORD	1	1002	0
15	1029	Window and	APPR		JK	499.2	BEDFORD	2		480
16	1009	100 gpm Pu	APPR		IR	6784	BEDFORD	1	PUMP100	6400
17	1010	General Plu	APPR	1	HELWIG	332.07	BEDFORD	3	0-7205	5
18	1010	General Plu	APPR		HELWIG	332.07	BEDFORD	1	0-0048	298
19	1010	General Plu	APPR		HELWIG	332.07	BEDFORD	2	900810	7.58
20	1011	Plumbing Su	APPR		HELWIG	108.55	BEDFORD	2	570-72	75
21	1011	Plumbing Su	APPR		HELWIG	108.55	BEDFORD	1	6-L203	26.53
22	1016	100 gpm Pu	APPR		HELWIG	6572	BEDFORD	1	PUMP100	6200

QBR Report Display Notes:

1. When a QBR Report is created, the user's individual report inputs are taken and converted to a birt .rptdesign file via an API. This 'on-the-fly' report design file utilizes the V7 Standard Formatting, including the standard colors, fonts, logos and page formatting. This information is applied to the report design file via the Maximo System Library.

2. If a QBR Report is converted to pdf, it will display in landscape format, like the other Enterprise V7 Out of the Box reports.

3. As noted earlier, there are no limitations to the number of fields a user can add to the report. A user can choose to only include a single data field, or a very large number like 50 fields.

If the user adds a very large number of database fields to their QBR report, this will require the user to scroll through the Report Browser to view all of their fields.

Additionally, if the user prints or exports the report with a very large number of fields to Adobe, all of the report fields will not display due to the fixed page size of Adobe.

Also, if the user prints the report to HTML, the user will need to scroll through the Report Browser to view all of their fields – but only a portion of those fields will print in HTML due to the fixed page size.

However, these constraints should not limit users to a minimum number of fields because many users want a large number of fields to export to .csv or .xls for additional data analysis. Since the export of data to .csv/.xls is a primary requirement of this functionality, the number of fields the user can utilize in his QBR Report will not be limited by scrolling or incomplete display of data in pdf.

QBR: Miscellaneous Report Title and Saving Notes:

1. A user can create multiple QBR Reports with the same title, as long as they are created from different applications. He can not create multiple QBR Reports with the same name in the same application.

For example, user Bob creates a QBR Report with the title 'Bob's Report' in the Asset application. He can create a different QBR Report and save it with the same report title 'Bob's Report' as long as it is created from a different application.

If the user tries to create multiple QBR reports with the same title in the same application, he will receive the error message below.

BMXAA7044W - Another Query Based Report in this application has this Report title. Click OK to overwrite the existing report that has this title. Click CANCEL to exit this action and enter a new Report Title.

System Message	
BMXAA7044W - Another Query Bas Report Title. Click OK to overwrite the	ed Report in this application has this existing report that has this title. Click
CANCEL to exit this action and enter	a new Report Title.

June 2009 – This error message above was updated in the Base Services 7.1.1.5 Release for additional clarification. The updated message is shown here

BMXAA7044W - You are the owner of another Query Based Report in this application with the same Report Title. Click OK to overwrite the existing report that has this title. Click CANCEL to exit this action and enter a new Report Title for the current report.

BMXAA7044W - You application with the s report that has this til Depend Title for the or	are the owner of another Query Based Report in th ame Report Title. Click OK to overwrite the existing le. Click CANCEL to exit this action and enter a new verset second.	s

2. QBR Report Titles must be also be unique with any other BIRT Reports within the Application. This applies to any BIRT report - whether it is a BIRT QBR report or a BIRT Enterprise report.

For example, a client has an Enterprise Report called 'Vendor Analysis' in the Purchasing application. If a user then tries to create a Ad Hoc report with the Report Title of 'Vendor Analysis' in the Purchasing application, they will receive the error below.

BMXAA7045E - Another report in this application has this Report Title. Specify a new Report Title.

🖶 System Message	
BMXAA7045E - Another report in this application has this Report Title. Specify a new Report Title.	8
C	ж

QBR Report Execution

After the report is created, it can be executed immediately or scheduled to execute in the future. If the QBR Report is saved, a number of different actions can occur including:

Executing from the Run Report Window Enabling other security groups to access

Deleting the QBR when it is no longer required

Executing from the Run Report Window

After the user creates and saves a QBR Report, it is accessible to him from the Reports window. This is shown below as the new QBR Report 'Bob's PO Report Grouped by Site and Company' is displayed.

The user can then click on that report, and either execute it immediately or schedule it to run in the future.

Purchas	se Orders		
BEDFORD_PO	Find:	🔥 🗢 Select Action 🕑 🐌 😠 🖉	🍨 🔶 I 🔅 I 🔿 I 🗸 🖳
List PC	D PO Lines	Ship To / Bill To Terms and Conditions Specifications	
M Advanced S	Search 🔻 🗟 Save Qu	🛡 Reports	
POs 🛛 🛩 Filter	> # \${\{\begin{aligned}circle{1} & \$		
<u>P0</u>	Description		-up Date
		Belect a report from the list, or click Create Report to create	e an ad hoc report.
1000	Store Repler		
1004	1 Inch ID Copp	On Demand Reports Scheduling Status	
1005	Electrical Supp		
1008	Refurbishmen	Reports to Run 🛛 🔍 Filter 🖓 🏦 📋 🗍 🍦 🍦 🗣 1 - 5 of 6 🐥 🛛	Download 2
1009	100 gpm Rump	Description	
<u>1010</u>	General Plumb		
1011	Plumbing Supp	Bob's PO Report Grouped by Site and Company	Û.
1012	General Contr	PO Status Details	
1012	Activities	Purchase Order Details Report	
<u>1013</u>	Window and it building	Purchase Order List	
1015	Request for Tr	vendor Performance	
1016	100 gpm Pump		
1017	Seals for Cent	Create	Banad Canad
1021		Create	
1022		APPR	

Deletion of the QBR when it is no longer required

QBR Reports can be deleted when they are no longer required. This may occur when a user decides that he no longer needs a certain QBR Report. To delete a QBR, the user accesses the Report list. A garbage can displays for any QBR that the user can delete. The user can only delete QBR Reports that he is the owner of. These are identified by his userid matching REPORT.USERID.

If the user clicks on the garbage can, the icon will show it has been selected for deletion, and standard Maximo deletion functionality applies.

If a user has access to a QBR that was not created by him, he does not have the ability to delete it, and hence he will not have access to a garbage can to delete it.

Ô,	Purchase Orders			
BEDFOR	ID_PO	👫 🔝 Select Action	🖥 🗟 وا 🔹 اې اې اې 🗸	× 🗈
List	PO PO Lines	Ship To / Bill To Terms and Conditions	Specifications	
🕅 Ad	vanced Search 👻 🗟 Save Qu	Reports		
POs	👽 Filter 🛛 🏤 🔤 🕴 🛊 🍟 🖗 4			
PO	Description		<u>-u</u>	p Date
		Belect a report from the list, or click Crea	te Report to create an ad hoc report.	
1000	Store Repler			
1004	1 Inch ID Copp	On Demand Reports Scheduling State	JS	
1005	Electrical Supp	No		
1008	Refurbishmen	Reports to Run 🛛 🐨 Filter 🖓 🕅 👘 🖓	← 1 - 5 of 6 → E ¹ / <u>Download</u> 3 =	
1009	100 gpm Rump	Description		
1010	General Plumb			
1011	Plumbing Supp	Company	Û	
1012	General Contr	PO Status Details		
1012	Activities	Purchase Order Details Report		
<u>1013</u>	Window and it	Purchase Order List		
1015	Request for Tr	vendor Performance		
1016	100 gpm Pump			
1017	Seals for Cent		Create Report	
1021			Caller Caller	
<u>1022</u>			APPR	

Additionally, an administrator can delete QBR reports when a user may move on to another position. Administrators can delete QBR reports in the Report Administration application through the standard 'Delete Report' Functionality available from the Action Menu. Additionally, note that Security access to delete QBRs is enabled via the EVERYONE group. By default, all apps that have 'Create Report' functionality will have the 'Delete Report Button' enabled for the EVERYONE Group. This is shown in the screenshot below.

<u>ĝ</u> ĉĝ	Security Groups		<mark>₽</mark> <u>B</u> ulletins: (0,
	Find:	👫 🤝 Select Action 💽 🏹 📓 🧶 🛙	🌢 🔶 I 🔿 📴
List	Group Sites	Applications Storerooms Labor GL Components	Limits and Tolerances Data Restrictions
4 <u>0</u> 20	Group EVERYONE	All Maximo Users	
Applic	ations Filter Manager	🛊 🖕 1 - 3 of 3 🦗	
			Gran
Descrip	otion 🕈	Main Object/Table	
asset			
Asset I	Link Results	Asset Link Result view.	
Asset I	Reconciliation Results	Asset Result of Link and/	'or Comparison
Asset	s	The ASSET Table	
Option	ıs for Assets 🛛 🐌 Filter 🦦 🗄] :	
-			
Fil	ter 🖓 🔂 👔 🔶 🐓 🛶 1 - 4 of -		
	Description +		Grant Access?
	report		
•	Create Report Button		
•	Delete Report Button 🛛 🔶		
	Report Downtime		
	toport bo tritino		

Enabling Access for Other Security Groups

Only the user creating the individual QBR report has security access to run and execute the saved QBR report. This is because Ad Hoc reporting is based on an *individual's* business needs, and for many instances, the Ad Hoc report is only accessed by a single individual. This is enabled by including the USERID of the individual who created the report to the report's record when it is saved.

However, others may need access to this report either because the owner wants to share it with others, or if a manager wants to share a report with people he manages. To enable this, Report Security to the QBR is granted by an administrator in Report Administration. Report Application Security Access only applies to Enterprise Reports – not QBR Reports.

To enable this, the administrator accesses Report Administration. He then locates the specific report by either filtering the report results by report title, or by filtering the results on the list tab on the 'Created By' Field. The Created By Field identifies the owner/creator of each QBR.

					- Eronio - A Bigh out	
Find:	🕅 🔝 Select Action 🔽 🏹 📓 🧶	4 4 <u>B</u>				
List Report Security Perfe	ormance					
🕅 Advanced Search 🔻 🗟 Save Query 🔻 🍕	Bookmarks			×		
Reports 🔻 Filter 🖓 🕎 🛊 🖕 🖕 1 - 20 d	of 184 🥪					Download
Report File Name	Description	Application	Report Folder	Report Type	Created By	Priority
po_liberi1231334930375.rptdesign Liberi's PO Analysis of ATI		PO	PO	BIRT	LIBERI	4
po wilson1231327905281.rptdesign	Bob's PO Report Grouped by Site and Company	PO	PO	BIRT	WILSON	-
jobplan wilson1231332973015.rptdesign	test	JOBPLAN	JOBPLAN	BIRT	WILSON	40
sla exception.rptdesign	Service Level Exception	SLA	SLA	BIRT		\$
service desk resp res.rptdesign Service Desk Contact, Response and Resolution		SLA	SLA	BIRT		<u> </u>

Once he finds the particular QBR Report, he grants Security Groups access to execute the report on the Security Tab. This is illustrated with Bob Wilson's report below, where the Purchasing Group has been granted access to it. With this change, any member of the Purchasing Group will be able to see and execute this QBR report.

H [×] ≣ Report Administration		(* <u>Direns</u> ; (i) / * <u>5</u>	p to jui Reports # Start Center & Prome	Sign Out 7 Help IEm.
Find:	🤜 Select Action 📉 🎦 🔒 🧶 🌳 🚉			
List Report Security Performance				
Report File Name po wilson1231327905281.rptdesign QBR Created By WILSON	Bob's PO Report Grouped by Site and Company	Application [PO	
Report Level Security 🖡 Filter × Mr 😂 🛊 🔹 💽	1 1 of 1 🚽			E) <u>Download</u> ? =
Group 🕈	Description			
PURCHASING P	Purchasing			Û
	Details			
Group* PURCHASING		Description Purchasing		
				New Row

To illustrate this, user, Liberi, will be used. Liberi is a member of the Purchasing Group and she has access to all Purchasing reports. When she clicks 'Run Reports' from the PO application, she sees the list of reports below. Notice, she does not see Bob's QBR Report because she has not been granted security access to it.
Purcha	ase Orders			Bulletins: (1)
	Find:	🚮 💌 Select Action 🔽 🐌 🔒 🧶 🧶 🖗 🛟 🧖	✓ × ➡!] 2 2
List	PO PO Lines	Ship To / Bill To Terms and Conditions Specifications		
MA Advanced	Search 👻 🗟 Save Qu	Reports		
POs 👿 Filte	er > 🚓 📳 🗛 🧛 🖡 💠 1 -			
<u>P0</u>	Description		up Date	Company
L		3 Select a report from the list, or click Create Report to create an ad hoc report.		
1004	1 Inch ID Cop			ATI
1005	Electrical Supp	On Demand Reports Scheduling Status		GCE
<u>1000</u>	Store Replenis			ATI
1008	Refurbishment	Reports to Run 🔗 Filter 🦓 📮 🛊 🍦 💠 1 - 5 of 5 🔶 📴 <u>Download</u> ? 🚍		BWC
1009	100 gpm Pump	Description		IR
1010	General Plumb			HELWIG
1011	Plumbing Supp	PO Status Details	-	HELWIG
4042	General Contra	Purchase Order List	10	OUFOTED
1012	Activities	Vendor Performance		CHESTER
<u>1015</u>	Request for Tu	Vendor Performance By Item		
1016	100 gpm Pump			HELWIG
<u>1013</u>	Window and ir- building			JK
<u>1017</u>	Seals for Cent	Create Report Cancel		ATI
1025	Materials from	18Wig APPR	_	HELWIG

Now, the administrator grants security access to the Purchasing Group to Bob's QBR report which is shown in the Report Administration screen shot on the previous page. The next time Liberi accesses the report window, she will see and be able to execute Bob's QBR Report. Notice however that she can not delete this report as no garbage can appears as she is not the owner of this QBR Report.

	Find:	🔜 🚜 🤝 S	elect Action	v	۱ 🖉 🖬 🗿
List	PO PO Lines Ship 1	Fo / Bill To	Terms and Con	ditions	Specifications
Advance	Reports				
s ¦ 🌳 Fi					
		0	1 01 00 00	0.0.0	
	Select a report from the	list, or click Cre	ate Report to crea	ate an ad hoo	c report.
04					
05	On Demand Reports	Scheduling Sta	tus		-
00					
00	Deporte to Pup	AR INTA	1 . 5 of 8	PH David	- 2 1 m
08	Reports to Run 🛛 🤝 Filter 🔅	n 🗆 👬	🕴 🐢 1 - 5 of 6 👙	By Downlos	ad ? 📼
08 09	Reports to Run 🕴 🛷 Filter > Description	13 2 4 3	i 🖕 1 - 5 of 6 🧇	E? Downlo	ad 3 =
08 09 10	Reports to Run Verification Filter	dita i 🗔 i 🛊 🐳	.	E ^{ly} Downlo	ad ? 🖴
08 09 10 11	Reports to Run V Filter > Description Bob's PO Report Grouped I Company	dRa 🔁 🕯 🔶 🔮		El Downlo	ad ? =
00 08 09 10 11	Reports to Run Filter Description Bob's PO Report Grouped I Company PO Status Details	路 日 十 4	- + 1 - 5 of 6 - ⇒	E Downlo	<u>ad</u> ? ==
08 09 10 11 12	Reports to Run Filter Description Bob's PO Report Grouped I Company PO Status Details Purchase Order Details Report	dta 🗇 🛧 👌	. ↓	E/ Downlo.	ad ? ==
00 09 10 11 12 15	Reports to Run Filter Description	dfb 🛛 🕪 👌	. ↓	E) <u>Downlo</u> x	ad ? ==
00 00 00 10 11 12 15 16	Reports to Run Filter Description	dfb 2 + + +		E? <u>Downlo</u> .	<u>ad</u> ? ==
00 09 10 11 12 15 16 13 -	Reports to Run Filter Description	or Site and	. ↓	E' Downlo.	
100 100 110 111 112 115 115 116 113 117	Reports to Run Filter Description	dfb 2 + 4		E Downlo.	ad ? ==

If Liberi then creates her own QBR Report, it will display with the others. However, since she is the owner, it will display a Garbage Can which she can use to delete the report in the future.

Purchase Orde	ers		
	Find:	👫 🤝 Select Action	💽 🔁 🍙 🖉 I 🌵 🔶 I 🛟
List PO	PO Lines Ship To / Bi	ill To Terms and Con	ditions Specifications
Advanced Search	Reports		
POs 🚽 Filter 🖓 🕼			
<u>P0</u>			
4004	Select a report fr	om the list, or click Create R	eport to create an ad hoc report.
1004			
1005	On Demand Reports	Scheduling Status	
1000			
1008	Reports to Run 🕴 😿	Filter 🖓 🔁 🛧 🦆 🔶	1 - 5 of 7 🧼 🕑 <u>Download</u> ? 🖃
1009	Description		
1010			
1011	Bob's PO Report Gro	uped by Site and	
1012	Liberia DO Apphysic of	A.T.1	
1012	BO Status Datails	AU	
1015	Purchase Order Details	Report	
1016	Purchase Order List		
<u>1013</u>	a south restances to the second s		
1017			
1025			Create Report Cancel
3000	Umy more of the second		WALLS

QBR - Security Access

Before detailing how the security functionality is enabled for QBR reports, a best practices overview of security for QBR reports will be detailed.

Best Practices - QBR Security Access

Each of your Version 7 users has a broad range of skills sets and job requirements. Because of this diversity, you should carefully evaluate report security – and which users have access to report execution and creation.

Using your users varying skill sets and job requirements, you can place them into different reporting categories which could include

1. Non Report Users: Users who utilize the system for viewing data, querying or status input only. They either do not require the ability to execute reports for their job, or they require a very structured functionality process, which does not include report execution.

2. Individual Report Users: Users with specific job requirements, requiring limited access to a small set of reports.

3. Application Report Users: Users with a broader range of job requirements, and who work extensively in a specific set of Maximo applications.

4. Super Report Users: Users whose primary focus is on analyzing data to improve business processes, or to provide data to supervisors/managers. These users are very familiar with the Maximo database and a variety of software tools.

5. Administrators: Users who administer and maintain all aspects of reporting, including security, repository, usage and performance enablers. This individual has the greatest level of report security.

Each of these groups of users should be granted varying levels of report security. This will insure they have the functionality they need to perform their job, while also making sure they are not performing actions which could potentially negatively impact the system or other users.

For example, the 'Individual Report Users' who has very specific job requirements, and hence limited access to a small number of applications within Maximo – would only require access to a small number of reports. Therefore these users should not be granted 'All Report Security Access'. Instead, they should only be granted security access to run a small, selected number of reports, and should not be granted access to create QBR reports. This compares to the Super Report User, who has access to a large number of applications within Maximo, is familiar with the Maximo database, and spends a large percentage of his day using a variety of software tools. This user should have access to run all reports, and also create his own reports.



*More details on the varying levels of report security – Individual, Application and All Reports – can be found in the V7 Report Feature guides available here http://ibm.co/niokIv

Functionality - QBR Security Access

As noted above, the best practices recommendation is that you restrict the number of users who have Create QBR report access. Create QBR report access should only be given to users trained in the functionality, and those with a top level understanding of the Maximo database structure and applications. Restricting QBR security access will help in preventing all users from creating large numbers of reports that may contain very large record sets and that may not be needed.

Therefore, the ability to 'Create' a QBR report must be explicitly granted from the Security Group application for each application. The security group must first have 'Run Report' Access, and then the additional 'Create' QBR Functionality can be given.

Security groups can have 'Create' QBR access for some applications and not others. This enables you to manage the security groups creating reports. This security restriction can prevent users from creating unnecessary reports, which can consume premium database and application server resources.

The Create QBR functionality is available for any application that has the 'Run Report' Action available. An example of this is the Asset application shown below. In this case, the Security Group 'PLANNING' has security rights to run reports, but not to Create QBR reports.

្រុំណ្នំ Security Groups	Bulletins: (0)
Find:	🕅 🔝 Select Action 🛛 💙 🚺 🖃 🗶 I 🗇 🌳 I 🔿 🔜
List Group Sites Applica	INS Storerooms Labor GL Components Limits and Tolerances Data Restrictions
Group SCHEDULING	aduling
	Grant
Description =	Main Object/Table
asset	
Asset Link Results	Asset Link Result view.
Asset Reconciliation Results	Asset Result of Link and/or Comparison
Assets	The ASSET Table
Options for Assets 🛛 🌢 Filter 🕬 🗄 🛊	- 1 - 4 of 4 -
🗇 Filter 🛛 🖓 🛛 🛊 👙 🖕 1 - 2 of 2 🥪	
Description =	Grant Access?
create report, run	
Create Report Button	
Run Reports	

If an application does not have the 'Run Report' Application available, the Create QBR functionality will not be available. There is a dependency on the Create Report functionality on RUNREPORT. An example of this is the BBOARD (Bulletin Board) application.

These security group authorizations are held in the APPLICATIONAUTH table (select * from APPLICATIONAUTH where optionname = 'CREATEREPT').

For demo/testing purposes, the maxdemo database has enabled the 'Create QBR' functionality for the MAXADMIN Security Group.

Miscellaneous Report Admin Features for QBR Reports

1. Report administrators can extend QBR reports by enabling settings as Schedule Only, Priority and Display Orders. More details on these specific features can be found in the Report Feature Guide.

Report Administration		🤑 <u>B</u> ulletins: (0) 🥠 <u>G</u> o To 🗉	<u>al R</u> eports	? Help IEM.
Find:	Select Action 🛛 🔽 🎦 🔒 🧶 🌳 🚉			_
List Report Security Performance				
Report File Name po_wilson1231327905281 rpt/design Report Type BiRT P Meport87 BY WLSON OBR Created By WLSON	Bob's PO Report Grouped by Site and Company	Application PO P Report Folder [®] PO Last Import Date 1/7/09 6:34 AM		
Settings	No Dequest Page?		Browser View2	=
Max Record Limit	Use Where Clause?		Browser View Location* NONE	Q
Schedule Only?	Display Order		Direct Print?	
Priority	Toolbar Sequence		Direct Print Location * NONE Direct Print with Attachments?	۹
			Direct Print with Attachments Location* NONE	Q.
			Generate Request Page	Preview
Parameters ► Filter > ఈ □ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦			5	<u>bountend</u> ? =
Parameter Name	Attribute Name	Sequence 🕈 Display Name	Required?	
	No rows to display	f		New Row

2. Parameters: QBR reports execute against the Current Record Set of the Application. They do not execute against User Inputted Parameters. Therefore,

- When a user accesses a saved QBR report, no parameters display on its request page. Depending on the filter saved with the QBR, the report will either run against the current record set, or against the query saved with the report.
- Because of this, the functionality to add report parameters for QBRs in the Report Administration application is not enabled. If an administrator tries to add a parameter to a QBR, the following message displays:

BMXAA6140E: Query Based Reports can not have parameters.

System Message	
BMXAA6140E: Query Based Reports can not P	nave parameters.
	ОК

If you need to add parameters to a QBR report, you must first add them to its design file (.rptdesign) within the BIRT Designer. When you make these types of parameter updates, or any other updates which could include adding calculations or graphs, the report is changed from a QBR to an enterprise report.

3. QBR reports execute against the current record set of an application. Therefore if you access the 'Create Report' functionality from either the list tab or detail tab of an application, the report will always use the current record set of the application. It does not limit itself to the selected record set. This may be best explained by an example.

A user is in the PO application, and filters his records to form a result set of 5 records. If he access the 'Create QBR' functionality from the list tab - the current record set of 5 can be applied to the report. (Apply the Current Query and Filter from the Application flag)

	Find: Select Action	🔄 🕑 🗟 🧟 🔷 🔍	🕽 I 🔿 I 🗸 📐 🛯] 😫 😫			
List PO	PO Lines Ship To / Bill To Terms and Co	nditions Specifications					
Advanced S	earch 🔻 🗟 Save Query 🔻 🏈 Bookmarks						
0's 🚽 Filter	200 ÷ (← 1 - 5 of 5 →)						<u>B</u> <u>D</u>
20	Description	Status	Follow-up Date	Company	Total Cost	Site	
0	Description	Status	Follow-up Date	Company ati	Total Cost	Site =BEDFORD	P
0	1 Inch ID Copper Tubing	APPR	Follow-up Date	Company ati // // // // // // // // // // // // //	<u>Total Cost</u> 78.22	Site =BEDFORD BEDFORD	٩
0 004 000	Description 1 Inch ID Copper Tubing Store Replenishment	Status APPR APPR	Follow-up Date	Company ati // // // // // // // // // // // // //	Total Cost 78.22 1,264.20	Site =BEDFORD BEDFORD BEDFORD	P
004 0000 017	Description 1 Inch ID Copper Tubing Store Replenishment Seals for Central Storeroom	Status	Follow-up Date	Company ati Ati ATI ATI	Total Cost 78.22 1,264.20 283.50	Site =BEDFORD BEDFORD BEDFORD BEDFORD	۹_
20 1004 1000 1017 1068CS	Description Inch ID Copper Tubing Store Replenishment Seals for Central Storeroom BEDFORD Site New Items and Tools	APPR APPR APPR APPR	Follow-up Date	Company ati // // // // // // // // // // // // //	Total Cost 78.22 1,264.20 283.50 649.97	Site =BEDFORD BEDFORD BEDFORD BEDFORD BEDFORD	٩

Additionally, if the users clicks on the PO Tab for that individual 'selected' record – and then clicks on the 'Create QBR' Functionality – the original current record set of 5 can still be applied to the report.

Purchase Orders							Bulletins: (0) 🛛 😰 <u>G</u> o To	un <u>R</u> eports
Find:		Select Act	ion 💌 🐌		🗧 🗘 🔊 🗸	· 🗙 🖬 i 🛛] 8 8	
List PO PO Lines	Ship To / Bill To	Terms	and Conditions Sp	ecifications				
PO 1004 1 inch ID C	opper Tubing		Site BEDF	ORD		Status /	APPR	
Details	37	-	🖽 Dates		10	24	🗖 Costs	
Ту	e STD	P		Status Date	7/19/96 2:45 PM	B		
Original F	0	-		Ordered Date	7/19/96 12:00 AM	B		
Buyer Compar	ıy			Required Date	7/31/96 12:00 AM	B		
Buy	F NANKIN			Follow-up Date				
Priori	ty 8			Vendor Date	7/31/96			Tot
Receip	COMPLETE				12/36			
Contract Reference	ie l							

This is different behavior than an Enterprise report as the business rule is QBR will always utilize the current record set on report creation.

Extending Ad Hoc Reporting Functionality

The features listed below are a few items that clients may wish to utilize to extend or customize the Ad Hoc Reporting functionality.

Importing/Exporting and Report Design File Structure

QBR reports are unique from Enterprise reports in that QBRs do not require an import process to load the report design's file in the database. Instead, when the user creates and saves the QBR, the report design (.rptdesign) is saved to the database. This enables the report design to be extended in the BIRT Designer. This can be an excellent starting point for a report developer creating a custom report - as he then only has to extend the report - not create it from a blank template.

To extend the Ad Hoc Report, the developer would follow the steps below:

Setup Steps: The reporttools.properties file is used to enable both importing and exporting operations. This file is located at: <V7>\reports\birt\tools, and includes the text below

HostName or IP address of the machine that has MAXIMO application running in an App Server maximo.report.birt.hostname=localhost # HTTP port of the application server (the port used to access maximo from browser) maximo.report.birt.port=9080 # Indicates whether the SSL communication is enabled or not maximo.report.birt.ssl=false # User that has access to perform the operation maximo.report.birt.username=wilson # Password of the user that has access to perform the operation maximo.report.birt.password=wilson # Output folder used for the export operation maximo.report.birt.outputfolder=c:/7116/reports/birt/export/asset

1. To export an Ad Hoc Report, open a command window. Navigate down to the exportcommands path.... <V7>reports\birt\tools

Command Prompt Microsoft Windows XP [Version 5.1.2600] (C) Copyright 1985-2001 Microsoft Corp. C:\Documents and Settings\Administrator>cd c:\ C:\>cd 7116\reports\birt\tools C:\7116\reports\birt\tools>exportreports app asset 2. Depending on what you want to export, input your command. This example is exporting all reports from the asset application - both enterprise and ad hoc reports using the command: export exports app asset

export eports upp usser			
Lexportreports] Exportin	g report: LASSET.	assetmove_history.rptdesign	
[exportreports] Exportin	g report: [ASSET]	asset_glaccount.rptdesign	
[exportreports] Exportin	g report: [ASSET]	asset_po.rptdesign	
[exportreports] Exportin	g report: [ASSET]	mgmt_sw.rptdesign	
[exportreports] Exportin	g report: [ASSET]	asset_external.rptdesign	
[exportreports] Exportin	g report: [ASSET]	asset_wilson1253022976.rptdesign	
[exportreports] Exportin	g report: [ASSET]	asset_wilson1253735606.rptdesign	
[exportreports] Exportin	g report: [ASSET]	asset_wilson1254250482.rptdesign	
BUILD SUCCESSFUL			
lotal time: 37 seconds			
C:\7116\reports\birt\too	ls>		-

*Note: Export a single report by: exportreports app <reportfilename>

To find out the file name of your Ad Hoc Report, navigate to the Report Administration application. Sort on the 'Created By' Field on the list tab, so the QBR reports display first. The Created By field is the unique identifier of a QBR report.

Report Administration			🔒 <u>B</u> ulletins: (0) 🛛 A Go To	Eports 🏚 Start Center	Profile X Sign Out ?
Find:	🛱 🤝 Select Action 🛛 🕑 🔒 🧶 🍳	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			
List Report Security Perf	ormance				
🕅 Advanced Search 🔻 🗟 Save Query 👻 🍕	P Bookmarks			~	
Reports 🌱 Filter - 🚓 😭 🐥 👙 🛶 1 - 20 a	f 186 🤪				E'p
Report File Name	Description	Application	Report Folder	Report Type	Created By =
wotrack wilson1264507234.rptdesign	WO Overdue Planned Analysis	WOTRACK	WOTRACK	BIRT	WILSON
asset wilson1265891531.rptdesign	IT Asset Spare Parts and Specs	ASSET	ASSET	BIRT	WILSON
wotrack wilson1265818274.rptdesign	My Work Order Reports	WOTRACK	WOTRACK	BIRT	WILSON
person wilson1264684847.rptdesign	My Department Person Details	PERSON	PERSON	BIRT	WILSON
invoice.rptdesign	Invoice List	INVOICE	INVOICE	BIRT	
invprint.rptdesign	Invoice Details	INVOICE	INVOICE	BIRT	

3. Next, navigate to the BIRT Designer. From the menu, click File - Open File and navigate to the directory where you exported your reports. The Ad Hoc Report you created displays

Report Design - C:\7116\reports\birt\	export\asset\	reports\ASSET\a	sset_wilsor	1255355	5171.rptdesign	- Ecl	ipse Platform				_ 6	
File Edit Insert Element Data Page Navigat	te Search Pro	ject Run Window	Help									
1 m • 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	• : () - 3	1- 10 () - 0		×							😭 🔝 Report Design 🔮	
	arrat avt	arnal ratdecian	🕞 accet wil	001255255	E171 rotdorion	-					-	
E B Data Sources	0 · · ·	· 1 · ·	1 · · · 2		· · 3 · · · I		4 5	6 .	7 .			
a maximoDataSource												
😑 😣 Data Sets	°.											
😑 📅 dataSet_asset	1.2											
asset_assetnum												
👘 📳 asset_installdate	i i	WO Detail	s of Asset	s Great	er than 10 Ye	ears						
workorder_wonum												
workorder_status		TF		107.7					17		Group Header Row (asse	
workorder_worktype					et: [asset_assetn					Installation D	ate: [asset_installdate]	
workorder_schedfinish											Group Header Row Lassa	
workorder_schedstart	-	Work O	der	Status	Work	Type		Scheduled Finish		Scheduled Start		
workorder_actinist	1.42		uer	Status		. ype						
workorder_actablest	~	[workorder_wo	um [workor	der_status	[workorder_work	type	[workorder_schedf]	[workorder_schedf	[workorder_sched	s [workorder_scheds	[workorder_actfin [wo	
workorder actmatcost						1	4			1		
workorder_actservcost											Pooter Kow	
workorder_actstart		Number of Ke	r of Records: Where Clause:			[total_	recj					
workorder_acttoolcost		Saved Where				(asset.siteid = 'BEDFORD') and asset.installdate < '01-01-1999'						
Data Cubes Penort Parameters	m	Dynamic Whe	Where Clause:			[parar	ns_where]					
w wy Report Parameters		Table										
		HH I CONC.										
	15											
	. <										>	
	Layout Mast	Layout Master Page Script XML Source Preview										
	Property B	ditor - Report 😂 🗋										
	Properties											
	General	Gen	eral									
🔁 Navigator 🛛 📴 Outline 🛛 🗖	Description											
	Commente	Auth	or:									
asset detail.rotdesign	Licer Propert	Crea	ed by:	MAXIMO	Create List Report	run-tin	ne functionality					
asset external.rptdesign	Manual Fund	Path:		C:\7116	reports\birt\export	asset	reports\ASSET\asset_v	wilson 1255355171.rpt	design 👘			
asset_glaccount.rptdesign	Nameu Expre	Title:										
asset_measurehist.rptdesign	Resources			Construction and						7		
asset_po.rptdesign	Event Handle	r Them	es:	MaximoS	ystemLibrary.maxim	10 I hen	1e			×		
asset_subassembly.rptdesign	Advanced	Layo	ut Preference:	Auto Lay	out					*		
asset.rptoesign assetmove history rotdesign		Repo	rt Orientation:	Left To R	light					×		
detailasset fail.rptdesign		Displ	v Name:	WO Deta	ils of Assets Greate	r than	10 Years					
		Dispi					and the second					

To view its sql, click on the Script Tab highlighted below with the dataset_asset highlighted.

Report Design - C:\7116\reports\birt\	export\asset\reports\ASSET\asset_wilson1255355171.rptdesign - Eclipse Platform
File Edit Page Navigate Search Project Rur	1 Window Help
📫 • 🖩 🛆 🞕 • 🏊 • 🖨 🖋	• : 近 - 同 - 🏷 🗢 • 🔅 🛍 📓 Report Des
😤 Palett 😫 Data E 🙁 🏛 Resou 🖓 🗖	🗟 asset_external.rptdesign 🛛 📓 asset_wilson1255355171.rptdesign 🔯
Bota Sources MaximoDataSource Model Source Model Source	<pre>Script open Script open</pre>

This gives the report developer an excellent starting point for additional extensions if needed - like adding a graph or enabling hyperlinks between reports.

4. If the developer chooses to modify the design file, it is recommended that the report file name be modified to identify it from the original file. If the developer plans on utilizing this report as an Enterprise Report, he would need to create and/or append the reports.xml and properties file for the new enterprise report. Additionally, because it is now an enterprise report, it would need to be imported through the reports import command, or the UI utility in the Report Administration application.

Number of Rows in Select Tab of QBR Window

10 rows display by default in the 'Available Fields' and 'Selected Fields' sections of the Select QBR Tab. This number can be configurable by the client in the library.xml file located in <V7>\resources\presentations\system in the code shown below.

(tablecol id="available_fields_table_col_1" type="event" mxevent"addAttribute" mxevent_iton="btn_moveToSelected gif" mxevent_de
 (tablecol id="available_fields_table_col_2" label="Field Description" datattribute="tild" sortable="true" showfilterfield="true"
 (tablecol id="available_fields_table_col_3" label="Field Value" dataattribute="attributename" sortable="true" showfilterfield="tru
 (tablebody)
 ('tablebody)

If you want to modify this default value, it should be set in both the 'Available Fields' and 'Selected Fields' Section. The updated xml file should then be reimported via the Application Designer.

QBR - Development Process

Next, the document will details the setup work involved in enabling Ad Hoc Reports, including Administration and how to enable Report Object Structures. This last portion is intended only for developers and/or administrators.



Overview of ROS

Report Object Structures (ROS) are used to enable the QBR functionality. ROS enable users to select fields from multiple categories (objects) for their ad hoc reports. Additionally, ROS are designed to enable users to visualize application categories and their parent/child relationships. These categories are displayed via a category tree drilldown in the Select Tab of the QBR Window in the top left hand side.

The example below shows the default QBR for Purchase Orders. The Drilldown Category Tree enabled by ROS is highlighted by the red arrow.

Select Query to U Apply	Sort se in the R the Current (Schedule eport Query and Filter fri	om the A	pplication? 🔽			
🖃 📕 Pur	chase Order	2517	Ava	ilable Fields 🛛 🏕 Filter 🕬	🔄 🔶 🍑 🔶 1 - 10 of 39	Download	
	O Companie	5	- Constanting	Field Description	Field Value		
	PO Lines	15	4	Bill To	BILLTO		
	PO Casts		4	Attention	BILLTOATTN		
	0 Terms		-	Buy Ahead Rate	BUYAHEAD		
			4	Buyer Company	BUYERCOMP	ANY	
			Changed By CHANGEBY				
			Changed Date		CHANGEDATE		
			Contact Contract Reference		CONTACT		
					CONTRACTREFNUM		
			Contract Revision		CONTRACTREFREV		
			4	Release #	CONTRELEAS	ESEQ	
						Add	
Selected F	ields 🔰 F	itter with [21] 4	4] +	1 - 7 of 7 🧅		E Download	
Co	olumn Order	Report Label			Field Value	Category	
*	1	PO			PONUM	Purchase Orde	
*	2	Description			DESCRIPTION	Purchase Order	
2	3	Status			STATUS	Purchase Order	
*	4	Follow-up Date			FOLLOWUPDATE	Purchase Order	
*	5	Company			VENDOR	Purchase Order	
*	6	Total Cost			TOTALCOST	Purchase Order	
	7	Site			SITEID	Purchase Order	

In this example, the Parent Category is Purchase Order. This parent has multiple children (PO Companies, PO Lines and PO Terms), and 1 set of grandchildren under PO Lines (PO Line Items, PO Costs). The children and grandchildren categories are Source Objects created for the Application's Main Object, Purchase Order, through maxrelationships.

If a child does not have any children, no further drilldowns are available. If a child has additional children, (main object's grandchildren), they are displayed visually with the + icon. This is standard Maximo-based Drilldown display. Multiple children-grandchildren relationships can be configured with ROS.

Set up Work for Report Object Structures

To enable field selection from multiple tables, setup or administrative work needs to be done to enable ROS.

It is very important that this setup work be done by a developer or administrator who is very familiar with the Maximo database and database concepts. Without this knowledge, the ROS can be setup incorrectly, leading to bad or misleading data in the QBR reports.

Three steps must occur to create and enable Report Object Structures. These steps are

<u>1. Create Report Object Structures</u>

The first thing that must be enabled is Report Object Structures and their categories must be defined in the Integration - Object Structure Application. An example of the PO ROS is shown in the screen shot below.

List Ob	ect Structure] 040		K alina		
Object 1	Structure R	EP_PO	Purcha	se Order Reporting Object	Query Only?		User Defined?
	umed By* R	EPORTING	Query	Based Reports	Self Reference?		Configurable?
utbound Definit	on Class				Support Flat Structure?		Alias Conflict?
ound Process	ng Class						
urce Objects	for REP_PC	Filter > 🔅	(p) + 9	+ 1 - 5 of 8 😛			E: Download
Object		Parent Obje	ect	Object Location Path	Relationship		Object Order User Defined?
PO	2		1	PO		Q.	
COMPANIES	P	PO	1	PO/COMPANIES	VENDOR	P	2 🗔
POLINE	P	PO	2	PO/POLINE	POLINE	P	3 🛄
ITEM	P	POLINE	1	PO/POLINE/ITEM	ПЕМ	P	1 🔲
POCOST	P	POLINE	2	PO/POLINE/POCOST	POCOST	P	2 🔲
					Details		
		Object PO	8		Relationship]P
	Paren	Object	1		Object Order 1		
	Object Locati	on Path PO			User Defined?		
		The second s					

2. Define Database Joins and Cardinality

Next, the any maxrelationships used to create the ROS must be updated to specify their Cardinality and Database Join Type.

3. Associate Report Object Structure to Application

Finally, the Report Object Structure must be associated with the application in Application Designer. A screen shot of the new Report Object field in App Designer is shown below.

Application Des	signer		Bulletins: (0) 🎓 📴 To 💷 <u>R</u> eports 🕈 S	tart <u>C</u> enter 🌲 <u>P</u> rofile 🎽 <u>S</u> ign Out
	Find: Select Action	💌 🖞 🖬 🖉 । 🍳 🔶 । 🔁 🍛 ।	1 1 28 i 🛠 🖌 🕽	D	
Applications W	/orkspace				
💝 Filter 🗉 🚯 🎒 🛧	🁙 🜩 1 - 3 of 3 🥪				E
Application	Description		Main Object	Report Object	Original Application
ро					N .
ENDPOINT	End Points		MAXENDPOINT		1.
REPORT	Report Administration		REPORT		
<u>PO</u>	Purchase Orders		PO	REP_PO	
Select Records					10

Each of these items is discussed in more detail below.

Create Report Object Structures

The first thing that must be put in place to enable multiple category drilldown for a QBR Report is the Report Object Structure (ROS). The ROS is enabled in the V7 Object Structure application. (This is accessible via Integration -> Object Structures)

The steps below detail how to setup a ROS for the Asset application and the business rules involved. Again, please note that the individual who is creating Report Object Structures needs to be very familiar with the Maximo Database Structure and Maxrelationships.

1. Go to the Object Structure Application. Filter on rep in the object structure field, and a few results should return. Notice two important items here

A. The Report Object Structures have a consumed by of 'REPORTING'. This is the unique attribute that identifies them as ROS. If this is not done, the ROS will not be able to be associated to an application in Application Designer. To enable this, a Value of REPORTING with a Description of 'Reporting Application' has been added to the SYNONYMDOMAIN Table for DOMAINID = 'INTUSEWITH'.

B. Secondly, it is it is recommended that you use a naming convention to quickly identify the ROS. The ROS delivered out of the box use the naming convention of 'REP_Application Name'. (For example, REP_PO). You can choose to either continue with this naming convention, or utilize one that may be more applicable to your environment.

Object Structures		🦊 Bulletins: (0) 🎓 Go To 🕮 Report	s 🕈 Start Center 🌲 Profile 💥 Sign O	ut ? Help IBM.
Find: Kinds Select	Action 🕑 🎦 🗟 🧟 🌳 🖗 🥎			
List Object Structure				
🕅 Advanced Search 👻 🗟 Save Query 👻 🔗 Bookmarks				
Object Structure 🛛 🛩 Filter 🖓 🎁 👘 🖓 🖓 🖓 🖓 🗛 1 - 4 of 4 🤿				Download
Object Structure	Description		Consumed By	
DMREPORT	Report migration object for Migration Manager		MIGRATIONMGR	
DMREPORTDESIGN	Report design migration object for Migration Manager		MIGRATIONMGR	40
REP PO	Purchase Order Reporting Object		REPORTING	 A
REP WO	Work Order Order Reporting Object		REPORTING	40
Select Records				

2. Next, the ROS for Asset will be built. This process is very similar to other parent - child relationship building. To start, insert a new record.

Object Structures			U <u>B</u> utetins: ((0) 🎓 <u>G</u> o To 🗀 <u>R</u> ep	orts 🌴 Start <u>C</u> enter 🌲 <u>P</u> rofile 🕺 <u>S</u> ign Out	? <u>H</u> elp	IIM.
Find:	🕅 🤝 Select Action	💌 🔁 📾 🗶 I 🔷 🌳 I 🔿					
List Object Structure							
Object Structure*			Query Only?		User Defined?	1	
Consumed By*	A		Self Reference?		Configurable?	1	
Outbound Definition Class			Support Flat Structure?		Alias Conflict?		
Source Objects for I Filter > 🛵 🚍	10.0.00				ι.	• <u>Bownia</u> a	<u>₁</u> ? =
Object Parent Object	Object Location Pati	<u>h</u>	Relationship		Object Order User Defined?		
		No row	vs to display				
						Ne	w Row

3. The top level of a ROS identifies the application where it will be used. Since this ROS is for the Asset application, whose main table is Asset (MAXAPPS.MAINTBNAME), an Object Structure called REP_ASSET will be created. The standard naming convention will be utilized, so the following values will be entered:

Object Structure: REP_ASSET Description: Asset Reporting Object Consumed By: REPORTING (Selected from Value List)

All other header fields will be null by default.

	Find:	🕅 🤝 Select Action	🗹 🚺 🗟 🗶 । 🐥 🍬 । 🔿			
.ist Öbjec	t Structure					
Object Str	ucture* REP_ASSET	Asset Reporting Object		Query Only?	User Defined?	
Consum	ed By* REPORTING	Query Based Reports		Self Reference?	Configurable?	~
tbound Definition	Class			Support Flat Structure?	Alias Conflict?	
ound Processing	Class					0 20
urce Objects fo	or REP_ASSET				G	gownloag
	Parent Object	Object Location Pat		Relationship	Object Order User Defined?	

* Note the record can not be saved at this point. If you try to save the record, the following error will appear:

BMXAA1601E - At least one source object is required in an Object Structure.

→ System message	
BMXAA1601E - At least one source ob Structure.	oject is required in an Object
	Close

4. Next, you must define at least one source object for the ROS. The Main Object (Table) for the application will be the Parent Source Object. Again, this will be the main table of the application (MAXAPPS.MAINTBNAME). Therefore, the Object of Asset will be selected from the Object Lookup.

Find:	👘 🤝 Sele	ect Action	1 🔂 🖉 🔷 🔶 🚫	
st Object Structure		9	=×: 5 ::	15
191	2 (2			
Object Structure* REP_ASSET	Asset Report			
Consumed By* REPORTING	P Query Based	S		
bound Definition Class				
		Filter > 👘 🔤	🖡 🤞 💠 1 - 20 of 44 🛸 📑 <u>Download</u> [?]	
und Processing Class		Object	Description	
Iron Objects for DED ASSET	A COLIMITA AL	asset		٦
ince objects for KEE_Kaser 1 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	- 0.0 1 1 F - F -	ASSET	The ASSET Table	_
Object Parent O	oject	ASSETANCESTOP		-
P	1	AUDETANCEOTOR	Attribute or property of an	-0
		ASSETATTRIBUTE	Asset(Item:As:Loc)	
Object*	0		Asset Feature Specifications History	
Parent Object		ASSETTEASPECHIST	Table	
Parent Object	·	ASSETEEATURE	Attributes that describe a feature on	
Object Location Path		AUDENTERIONE	an asset	
Reporting Description		ASSETFEATUREHIST	History of features for an asset	_
		ASSETFEATURESPEC	The AssetFeatureSpec table	
		ASSETHIERARCHY	The ASSETHERARCHY Table	_
		ASSETHISTORY	The ASSETHISTORY Table	_
		ASSETINPUT	information gathering for creating	
		ASSETISSUEITEMS	Asset Issue Items Default Info	- 12
		AGGETTERIC	Relationships commodity-asset/asset/vpe	
		ASSETLOCCOMM	/location.	
		ASSETLOCRELATION	The AssetLocRelation table	
		ASSETLOCRELHIST	The AssetLocRelationHist Table.	
		ASSETL OCHSEDOUST	Stores asset/location users and	
		AUDETEOCODERCODE	custodians	
		ASSETMETER	The ASSETMETER Table	
		ASSETMODIFYDFLT	Asset modify default values	-
		ASSETMOVEDFLT	Asset Move default values	
		ASSETSPEC	values of an attribute specified for an asset	
		ASSETSPECHIST	Asset Specifications History Table	5
	-	2		
			(a)	5

5. The Parent Source Object (Asset) must (1) have a Parent Object of null and (2) have an Object Order of 1.

Also, note the Reporting Description field. The text value entered will display to the user in the Create QBR Window. Therefore, enter a text value that the user will immediately be able to recognize. After entering this information, save the record.

and the structures			D UNCURS	.(0) 12 <u>c</u> o 10	<u>m Reports</u> in start <u>c</u> ent
Find:	🕅 🤝 Select Action 🖌] 🗍 🗟 🖉 🌳 🍦	1		
List Object Structure					
Object Structure* REP_ASSET	Asset Reporting Object		Query Only?		
Consumed By* REPORTING	Query Based Reports		Self Reference?		
Outbound Definition Class			Support Flat Structure?		
Inbound Processing Class					
Source Objects for REP_ASSET Filter > ([⊒ + + +1-1 of 1 →				
Object Parent Object	Object Location Path		Relationship		
✓ ASSET	ASSET				P
			Details		
Object* ASSET	۹ 🗕		Relationship		٩
Parent Object	1		Object Order	1	
Object Location Path ASSET			User Defined?		
Reporting Description Asset					

Next, any child or grandchildren categories must be defined as Source Objects to the parent. These source objects are also known as the categories for the application's QBR. They are the database tables (objects) related to the parent via maxrelationships.

In our example, two children will be created for Asset: Locations and Spare Parts. So, the Asset ROS will look like

Asset

Locations Spare Parts

List Object Structure Object Structure Asset R Consumed By* REPORTING Query Bi Filter Object Structure Object Paranto By* Object Structure Asset R Object Structure Relationships commodity-asset/asset/use Object Parant Object Asset I CCRELATION ASSET Asset I CCRELATION Object * Parent Object ASSET OCRELATION The Asset Cocelation table ASSET OCRELATION Asset Cocelation table ASSET OCRELATION The Asset Cocelation table ASSET OCRELATION The Asset Cocelation users and custodian users and custodian users and custodian users and custodian users and custodians Object * OcaTIONNETER Non Dersistent table for changing the Location Races of Look-up table Object Location Path LOCATIONNETER Reporting Description Values of an attribute specified for a location LOCATIONSECUST State and observations recorded on meters LOCATIONSERCUST For Location Change Status" page LOCATIONETER LOCATIONETER The Location Lead Time table LOCATIONSERCUST Colation Change Status" page LOCATIONETER </th <th>Y Find:</th> <th>dh :🔜</th> <th>Select Action</th> <th></th>	Y Find:	dh :🔜	Select Action	
List Object Structure Object Structure REP_ASSET Consumed By* REPORTING Outery B Object Object Structure Description Object Structure Relationships commodity-asset/asset/vee Object Parsent Object AssetLocCeMM ASSET AssetLocCellation Object Parent Object AssetLocRelation ASSET AssetLocRelation Object Parent Object AssetLocRelation ASSET AssetLocRelation Object Parent Object AssetLocRelation ASSET AssetLocRelation Parent Object AssetLocRelation AssetLocRelation Bore asset/location users and custodians Intervention Intervention Parent-Object Colations Intervention Intervention AssetLocCeanse Intervention Object Note Intervention Parent-Object Intervention Object Note Intervention Object Note Intervention Object Note Intervention Object Nobject Intervention </th <th></th> <th></th> <th>Select Value</th> <th>□ ? · [</th>			Select Value	□ ? · [
Object Structure REP_ASSET Asset Re Consumed By REPORTING Query B utbound Definition Class Object Description bound Processing Class Disc Relationships commodity-asset/asset/type Object Parent Object Relationships commodity-asset/asset/type Object Parent Object ASSETLOCCOMM Relationships Continue ASSETLOCCOMM Object Parent Object Stores asset/locRelation table ASSET ASSETLOCCHANGE Non persistent table for changing the Object* LoCATIONS The Location Ancestor Look-up table Object tocation Path Reporting Description Values of an attribute specified for a IOCATIONSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians of location IOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians of location IOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians IOCATION Direction Authorization table IOCATIONUSERCUST Cocation Authorization table IOCATION Direction Interactive table IOCATIONUSERCUST Cocation Change Status* page IOCATION Directional Location Interactive table IOCATION Th	List Uoject Structure			
Object Structure REP_ASSET Asset Ref Consumed By* REPORTING Query Bit atbound Definition Class Object Description Dotect Parent Object Relationships commodity-asset/as		1		
Consumed By* REPORTING Query B pathound Definition Class pound Processing Class Detect Description Detect Description Detect Parent Object ASSET Object Parent Object Description Detect D	Object Structure REP_ASSET	Asset Re		
Object Description Jourd Processing Class Ioc Relationships commodity-asset/asset/type //ocation. Object Parent Object ASSETLOCCOMM Relationships commodity-asset/asset/type //ocation. Object Parent Object ASSETLOCCELATION The AssetLocRelation table ASSET ASSETLOCCELATION The AssetLocRelation table Object* Parent Object ASSETLOCCUSERCUST Object* Non persistent table for changing the LabinVLoc Non persistent table for changing the LabinVLoc Object* Parent Object Non persistent table for changing the LabinVLoc Non persistent table for changing the LabinVLoc Object* Parent Object LOCANCESTOR The Location Ancestor Look-up table LOCATIONMETER Locations The Location Table LOCATIONSPEC LOCATIONSPEC Coation Stores info about users and custodians of location Operation table LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location "Change Status" page LOCHANGESTATUS For Location Location and table LOCKOUT Destion to put locking device in required state LOCCHANGE table LOCCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters.	Consumed By* REPORTING	P Query Ba	Filter 🖓 🔛	🛊 🥠 🛶 1 - 20 of 27 🥧 📑 Download 📪 🚍
Dec Relationships commodity-asset/asset/yee Object Parent Object ASSET ASSETLOCCRELATION The Asset of REP_ASSET ASSETLOCRELATION ASSET ASSETLOCRELATION Object Parent Object ASSETLOCRELATION The Asset of Caliboration table ASSET (CORELATION) The Asset of Caliboration table ASSET (CORELATION) ASSETLOCRELATION Object* LABINVLOCCHANGE Non persistent table for changing the LabinvLoc LOCANCESTOR The Location Ancestor Look-up table Information for meters attached to Iocations Object Location Path LOCATIONS Reporting Description Values of an attribute specified for a IOCAUTH The Location Authorization table LOCAUTH The Location Hierarchy table LOCCHERARCHY The Location Hierarchy table LOCKOUT Colation to put locking device in LOCCHER The Inceation Status table IOCOMETERREADING LOCOPER The Functional Location Information LOCOPER The Systems of Location stable LOCOSYSTEM The Location stable	utbound Definition Class		Object	Description
ASSETLOCCOMM Relationships commodity-asset/asset	oound Processing Class		loc	
Assert object Filter Assert object Assert object Assert object Assert occelation is a set of the aset occelation is a set of the assert occelation is a s				Polationshing commodity associaseothing
Object Parent Object ASSET ASSETLOCRELATION The AssetLocRelation table ASSET ASSETLOCRELHIST The AssetLocRelation Hist Table, ASSETLOCUSERCUST Stores asset/location users and Custodians LabinVLoc Diject * Doject Cocation Path Doject Location Path Information for meters attached to LOCATIONS The Locations Table LOCATIONSPEC Values of an attribute specified for a LOCATIONSPEC Values of an attribute specified for a LOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians Of location LOCATIONUSERCUST LOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location Authorization table LOCKOUT Operation to put locking device in IOCLAUTH The Location Lead Time table LOCKOUT Custon Lead Time table LOCCHERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters LOCOPER	ource Objects for REP_ASSET 🕴 🕨 Filte	· AA [] 4	ASSETLOCCOMM	Relationships commodity-assebassettype
ASSET	Object Parent Ob	iect	ASSETLOCRELATION	The AssetLocRelation table
ASSETLOCUSERCUST ASSETLOCUSERCUST ASSETLOCUSERCUST ASSETLOCUSERCUST Stores asset/location users and custodians LABINVLOCCHANGE LabinvLoc LOCANCESTOR The Location Ancestor Look-up table LOCATIONMETER LOCATIONMETER LOCATIONS The Locations Table LOCATIONS The Locations Table LOCATIONSPEC LOCATIONSPEC LOCATIONSPEC LOCATIONUSERCUST of location LOCATIONUSERCUST of location LOCATION Users info about users and custodians of location LOCATIONUSERCUST for Location Authorization table LOCAUTH The Location Authorization table LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location The application LOCATION The Location Authorization table LOCAUTH LOCAUTH The Location Hierarchy table LOCKOUT required state LOCLEADTIME The location Lead Time table LOCMETERREADING Reters LOCOPER The Functional Location Information meters LOCOPER The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI MULTIASSETLOCCI	ASSET D		ASSETLOCRELHIST	The AssetLocRelationHist Table.
Assert Locusercust custodians Non persistent table for changing the LabinvLoc Non persistent table for changing the LabinvLoc Object * Information for meters attached to locations Object Location Path Reporting Description Information for meters attached to locations LOCATIONS The Locations Table LOCATIONSPEC Values of an attribute specified for a location LOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians of location LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location Authorization table LOCKOUT Operation to put locking device in reguired state LOCOPER The functional Location Information Table LOCES		1999	ASSETI OCUSEDOUST	Stores asset/location users and
Object* Non persistent table for changing the LabinVLoc Parent Object LOCANCESTOR The Location Ancestor Look-up table Object Location Path Information for meters attached to locations LOCATIONNETER Information for meters attached to locations LOCATIONS The Locations Table LOCATIONS The Locations Table LOCATIONSPEC Values of an attribute specified for a location LOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians of location LOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians of location LOCATIONUSERCUST For Location Authorization table LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location Tchange Status" page LOCKOUT Operation to put locking device in required state LOCCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Location Information Table LOCOPER The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder		- C	ASSETLUCUSERCUST	<u>custodians</u>
Object LabivLoc Parent Object Information Ancestor Look-up table Object Location Path Information for meters attached to LOCATIONMETER Information for meters attached to LOCATIONS The Locations LOCATIONS The Locations Table LOCATIONSPEC Values of an attribute specified for a location LOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians of location LOCAUTH The Location Authorization table LOCHERARCHY The Location Hierarchy table LOCKOUT Operation to put locking device in required state LOCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Location Status table LOCSTATUS The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTLASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder			LABINVLOCCHANGE	Non persistent table for changing the
Parent-Object Infer Edication Pathe Object Location Path Information for meters attached to locations Reporting Description Information for meters attached to locations LOCATIONS The Locations Table LOCATIONSPEC Values of an attribute specified for a location LOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians of location LOCAUTH The Location Authorization table LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location formation table LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location to put locking device in required state LOCKOUT required state LOCOPER The location Lead Time table LOCOPER The Location Information meters. LOCOPER The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder	Object*	9	LOCANCESTOR	LabinvLoc
Object Location Path Reporting Description LOCATIONMETER Information for meters attached to locations LOCATION The Locations Table LOCATIONS The Locations Table LOCATIONSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians of location LOCATIONUSERCUST For Location Authorization table LOCCHARGESTATUS For Location Hierarchy table LOCKOUT Operation to put locking device in required state LOCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Location Information LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and	Parent Object	A	EUCANCESTOR	Ine Location Ancestor Look-up table
Reporting Description LOCATIONS The Locations Table LOCATIONSPEC Values of an attribute specified for a location LOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians of location LOCAUTH The Location Authorization table LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location "Change Status" page LOCHERARCHY The Location Hierarchy table LOCLEADTIME The location Lead Time table LOCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder	Object Location Path		LOCATIONMETER	locations
LOCATIONSPEC Values of an attribute specified for a location LOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians of location LOCAUTH The Location Authorization table LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location "Change Status" page LOCKOUT Operation the put locking device in required state LOCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Location Information LOCSTATUS The Location Status table LOCOPER The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder	Beneting Description		LOCATIONS	The Locations Table
LOCATIONISPEC location LOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians of location LOCAUTH The Location Authorization table LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location "Change Status" page LOCHERARCHY The Location Hierarchy table LOCKOUT Operation to put locking device in required state LOCLEADTIME The location Lead Time table LOCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Functional Location Information Table LOCSTATUS The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder	Reporting Description		LOCATIONSDEC	Values of an attribute specified for a
LOCATIONUSERCUST Stores info about users and custodians of location LOCAUTH The Location Authorization table LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location "Change Status" page LOCHERARCHY The Location Hierarchy table LOCKOUT Operation to put locking device in required state LOCLEADTIME The location Lead Time table LOCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Functional Location Information Table LOCSTATUS The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder			LOCATIONSPEC	location
Image: Construction of location LOCAUTH The Location Authorization table LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location "Change Status" page LOCHERARCHY The Location Hierarchy table LOCKOUT Operation to put locking device in required state LOCLEADTIME The location Lead Time table LOCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Functional Location Information Table LOCSTATUS The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder			LOCATIONUSERCUST	Stores info about users and custodians
LOCAUTH Ine Location Authorization table LOCCHANGESTATUS For Location "Change Status" page LOCHERARCHY The Location Hierarchy table LOCKOUT Operation to put locking device in required state LOCLEADTIME The location Lead Time table LOCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Functional Location Information Table LOCSTATUS The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workerder		1	1.0.01.070	of location
LOCCHARGESTATOS For Execution Charge States page LOCHERARCHY The Location Hierarchy table LOCKOUT Operation to put locking device in required state LOCLEADTIME The Location Lead Time table LOCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Functional Location Information Table LOCSTATUS The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workerder			LOCAUTH	Ine Location Authorization table
LOCKOUT Operation included in			LOCHERARCHY	The Location Hierarchy table
LOCKOUT required state LOCLEADTIME The location Lead Time table LOCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Functional Location Information Table LOCSTATUS The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder				Operation to put locking device in
LOCLEADTIME The location Lead Time table LOCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Functional Location Information Table LOCSTATUS The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder			LOCKOUT	required state
LOCMETERREADING Readings and observations recorded on meters. LOCOPER The Functional Location Information Table LOCSTATUS The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder			LOCLEADTIME	The location Lead Time table
LOCOPER The Functional Location Information Table LOCSTATUS The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder			LOCMETERREADING	Readings and observations recorded on meters.
LOCSTATUS The Location Status table LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder			LOCOPER	The Functional Location Information Table
LOCSYSTEM The Systems of Locations table MULTIASSETLOCCI Multi Asset, location and Cis for workorder			LOCSTATUS	The Location Status table
MULTIASSETLOCCI Workorder			LOCSYSTEM	The Systems of Locations table
			MULTIASSETLOCCI	Mutti Asset, location and Cis for workorder

6. To do this, click New Row in the Source Object Section. In the object field, click on the lookup and select the LOCATIONS value.

The child, Locations, has a parent of ASSET. Therefore, select ASSET from the lookup on the Parent Object Field.

gille						
Fi	nd: [_ /h 🤝	Select Action	 	214	\$ 16
List Object Structure			0 			
Object Structure	EP_ASSET	Asset Re	porting Object			
Outbound Definition Class		Query Ba	Select Fields		/⊟ ⊧ ?	
Source Objects for REP_AS Object	SET > Filter > // Parent Object	1214	ASSET			
ASSET ASSET LOCATIONS A		1				
Parent	Object [*] LOCATION	IS P	5			
Object Locati Reporting Des	on Path LOCATION	IS				
					Canc	el

After selecting the Parent Object of Asset, the read only field of Object Location Path is updated to be 'ASSET/LOCATIONS' to indicate the hierarchy path.

7. Next, select the Relationship between the Parent Asset and the Child Location Table by clicking on the relationship lookup. This lookup displays values from the maxrelationship table.

R Select Value	
● Filter ×(%) 51 4	▶ 🐳 → 1 - 3 of 3 → 🕑 <u>Download</u> ? 🚍
Relation	RELSQLWHERE
ASSET LOCATIONS	location=:location and siteid = :siteid
LOCATION	location = :location and siteid = :siteid
NEWLOCATION	location = :newlocation and siteid = :newsite
	Cancel

Select the correct relationship for the ROS you are creating.

Notes: Best practices for selecting the correct relationship are contained at the end of this section.

8. Enter a Reporting Description for this category that the user will identify in the Create Window UI. Additionally, enter the Object Order of the Child to the Parent. Click Save.

	Object Stru	uctures						Bulletins: (0)	<i>і</i> <u>G</u> o To	LLL <u>R</u> eports	Start Center
		F	ind:	_ A 💌	Select Action	1 🗟 🖉 🗘	♦ 1 <				
	ist Objec	et Structure	e								
87	Object Str	ructure*	REP ASSET	Asset Re	porting Object			Query Only?			
	Consur	med By*		Query Ba	sed Reports			Self Reference?			
Ou	tbound Definition	n Class	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				Supp	ort Flat Structure?			
Inb	ound Processing	Class									
So	urce Objects fo	or REP_A	SSET 🌾 Filter 😕	a i 🕽 👍 🗸	∳ + 1 - 2 of 2 →						
	Object		Parent Object		Object Location Path		Relationsh	D			
Þ	ASSET	0		P	ASSET					P	
-	LOCATIONS	_ <u>P</u>	ASSET	2	ASSET/LOCATIONS		ASSET_LC	CATIONS		P	
							Details				
	Ot	Parer bject Local porting De	Object LOCATIOn to Object ASSET tion Path ASSET/L scription Location			-	(Us	Relationship ASSET_Li Object Order* 1 er Defined?	DCATIONS		٩

9. After saving, Click New Row again and repeat this process of adding a Source Object for the Child Spare Parts. Notice that when you click on the Parent Object lookup this time, you can start to view how the ROS hierarchy is being built.

Find:		Select Action	🔤 🔁 🗟 🖉 🔍 🔍	♦1
List Object Structure				
Object Structure* REP_ASS	T Asset R	eporting Object		
Consumed By * REPORTIN	G 🔑 Query B	lased Reports		
tbound Definition Class			E Select Fields	□ ?
ound Processing Class				
urce Objects for REP_ASSET	Filter ×M 12114	🔹 🛶 1 - 3 of 3 🐳		
Object Pare	nt Object	Object Location P	ath	
ASSET 🔎	2	ASSET	ASSET	
	ET 🍠	ASSET/LOCATIO	NS I LOCATIONS	
SPAREPART A	1	SPAREPART		
Object*	SPAREPART 🔎			
Parent Object		1		
Object Location Path	SPAREPART			
the second s				

Spare Parts is a child of Asset, so select Asset for the Parent Object. Then, select the correct relationship between the parent Asset and the child Spare Parts and click Save.

List Object Structure	Å .	🗢 Select Action 💌 🏹 🛃 🧷	\$ \$ IQ	
Object Structure [*] REP_ASSET Consumed By [*] REPORTING Outbound Definition Class Inbound Processing Class	Asset F Query I	Reporting Object	Query Only?	
Source Objects for REP_ASSET > Fill Object Parent O	er ×w) 💷 4 bject		Relationship	
Source Objects for REP_ASSET Fill Object Parent O ASSET P	er × 🗤 🔝 🔤	★ ↓ - 3 of 3 → Object Location Path ASSET	Relationship	P
Source Objects for REP_ASSET >> Fin <u>Object</u> Parent O > ASSET P > LOCATIONS P ASSET	er ×/// 22 4 bject //	Object Location Path ASSET ASSET/LOCATIONS	Relationship ASSET_LOCATIONS	٩
Source Objects for REP_ASSET > Fit Object Parent O ASSET P LOCATIONS P ASSET SPAREPART P ASSET	er x ii [2] 4 bject # #	Object Location Path ASSET ASSET/LOCATIONS ASSET/SPAREPART	Relationship ASSET_LOCATIONS SPAREPART	م م
Source Objects for REP_ASSET > Fit Object Parent C ASSET P LOCATIONS ASSET SPAREPART P ASSET Object Parent C	er XXX [27] 4	Object Location Path ASSET ASSET/LOCATIONS ASSET/LOCATIONS	Relationship ASSET_LOCATIONS SPAREPART Details	م م م[
Source Objects for REP_ASSET > Fit Object Parent C > ASSET P LOCATIONS ASSET SPAREPART P Object* SP Parent Object SP	er XX [2]	Object Location Path ASSET ASSET/LOCATIONS ASSET/SPAREPART	Relationship ASSET_LOCATIONS SPAREPART Details Relationship Object Order* 2	م م م[
Source Objects for REP_ASSET > Fit Object Parent C ASSET P LOCATIONS ASSET SPAREPART ASSET Object* SP Parent Object* ASSET Object ASSET	er X 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	Object Location Path ASSET ASSET/LOCATIONS ASSET/SPAREPART	Relationship ASSET_LOCATIONS SPAREPART Details Relationship Object Order* User Defined?	م م م[

The ROS Hierarchy you have built looks like this.



Excluding Persistent Fields from Source Objects

This next section is optional. However, it is highly recommended that you review its functionality as it will improve the 'Usability' features of Ad Hoc Reporting for your users.

By default, when a ROS is created, the fields displayed to a user in each Category will be the Persistent Fields of the Object. Any non-persistent object fields will not be available in the ROS and Ad Hoc Reporting.

Please note however, that the number of fields for each category could be very large. Additionally, some fields may repeat themselves between the parent and the child. (ex: Asset Number exists in both the Parent Asset Table and the Child Locations Table.)

Therefore, to reduce these potentially massive amounts of fields that the user has to filter through, the Object Structure Action of Excluding/Including fields can be used. This functionality enables the administrator to refine the field selection for each Source Object used by Reporting. Without this functionality, the vast amounts of data available to the user creating his QBR Report could become un-manageable.

This is shown in the screen shot below. From the Action Menu, the user selects 'Exclude/Include Fields'.

Object Structures				
Find:	M 🔫 🗹	elect Action	10 👩	214
List Object Structure Object Structure	Asset Rer	Exclude/Include Fields Generate Schema/Vie Add/Modify Alias	w XML	
Consumed By* REPORTING P Outbound Definition Class	Query Ba:	Duplicate Object Struc Delete Object Structure Add to Bookmarks	ture e	

For each of the Source Objects, the Admin can enable the check box to Exclude all the fields he does not want to display for the Source Object. The screen shot below shows the Parent Asset Source Object, 2 fields (HASLD and LANGCODE) are excluded by Default.

	Exclude/Include Fields		:?:⊠
 ♥]Fi			
List Object Structure	3		
Object Characters 5	Object Structure REP_ASSET	Asset Reporting Object	
Consumed By*	Source Objects for REP_ASSET	filter > 🏠 😓 🛊 🔸 1 - 3 of 3 🐳 👘 Downlo	ad ? =
Outbound Definition Class	Object		
shound Processing Class	ASSET		
	LOCATIONS		
Source Objects for REP_AS	SPAREPART		
Object			
🔻 ASSET 🖉 🔎	Persistent Fields Non-Persiste	ent Fields	
LOCATIONS	Persistent Fields Excluded From S	ource Object ASSET 🗄 🛊 🐇 🖕 1 - 10 of 78 🎿 🕞 Download	121=
SPAREPART	Field	Exclude?	102001-200
	► HASLD	V.	
	LANGCODE		
Parent	ANCESTOR		
Object Locati	ASSETID		
Reporting Des	ASSETNUM		
	ASSETTAG		28
	ASSETTYPE		
	► ASSETUID		
	AUTOWOGEN		
	BINNUM		
-			

The administrator then Excludes a few extra asset fields that would not be of value to the user creating an Ad Hoc report.

Obje	ect Structure REP_ASSET	Asset Reporting Object			
ource (Objects for REP_ASSET 🛛 🏓 Fi	lter > 🐴 🗊 🛊 👙 🖕 1 - 3 of 3 🤿		Downloss	?
oject					
SSET					
CATIO	NS				
PAREPA	RT				
Deve	intent Fields	at Ciolda			
150101	Non-Persiste	in Fields			
Persis	tent Fields Excluded From So	ource Object ASSET 🛛 🍦 🦊 🚁 21	- 30 of 78 👙	E7 Download	?
Persis	tent Fields Excluded From So	ource Object A SSET 🛛 🐴 🦂 🍲 21	- 30 of 78 👙 Exclude?	C ¹ Download	?
Persis	tent Fields Excluded From So Field ENDDESCRIPTION	ource Object ASSET 🛛 🐴 🤞 🛷 21	- 30 of 78 🦀 Exclude?	Download	?
Persis	tent Fields Excluded From So Field ENDDESCRIPTION ENDMEASURE	ource Object ASSET 🐴 🤌 🛷 21	- 30 of 78 🦀 Exclude?	E' <u>Download</u>	?
Persis	tent Fields Excluded From So Field ENDDESCRIPTION ENDMEASURE EQ1	ource Object ASSET 🛛 🐴 🤌 🛷 21	- 30 of 78 📣 Exclude?	E' Download	?
Persis	tent Fields Excluded From So Field ENDDESCRIPTION ENDMEASURE EQ1 EQ10	ource Object ASSET 🛛 🔌 🤌 21	- 30 of 78 🛸 Exclude?	C Download	?
Persis	tent Fields Excluded From So Field ENDDESCRIPTION ENDMEASURE EQ1 EQ10 EQ11	ource Object ASSET 🛛 🍐 🥠 🥠 21	- 30 of 78 Exclude? 	C Download	?
Persis	tent Fields Excluded From So Field ENDDESCRIPTION ENDMEASURE EQ10 EQ11 EQ12	ource Object ASSET 🛛 🏕 🤧 🥪 21	- 30 of 78 → Exclude? □	El Download	?
Persis	Second	ource Object ASSET 🛛 🏕 🤧 🦗 21	- 30 of 78 Exclude? 	B) Download	?
Persis	Sector Sector<	ource Object ASSET 🛛 🏕 🤧 🚧 21	- 30 of 78 Exclude? 	(E) Download	?
Persis	Sector Sector<	ource Object ASSET	- 20 of 78 Exclude? 	E) Download	?

Once the excluded fields are noted and then saved, the window is updated to what is shown below.

Excidute	/Include Fields	
		125 - <u>15</u> - <u>1</u>
Objec	t Structure REP_ASSET	Asset Reporting Object
ource O	bjects for REP_ASSET	Filter > 🏫 📴 🛊 🚽 🐳 1 - 3 of 3 🐳 👘 Download 3
<u>ject</u>		
SSET		
CATION	S	
AREPAR	रा	
Persis Persist	tent Fields Non-Persiste	ource Object ASSET
Persis Persist	tent Fields Non-Persiste ent Fields Excluded From S	ource Object ASSET 1 - 10 of 78 - Diventoad ? =
Persis Persist	tent Fields Non-Persiste ent Fields Excluded From S Field EQ2	ent Fields ource Object ASSET 1 - 10 of 78 -> IP <u>Download</u> ? = Exclude?
Persist	tent Fields Non-Persiste ent Fields Excluded From S Field EQ2 HASLD	ource Object ASSET + + + 1 - 10 of 78 + E+ <u>Download</u> ? = Exclude? I
Persist	tent Fields Non-Persiste ent Fields Excluded From S Field EQ2 HASLD EQ10	ent Fields ource Object ASSET 1 - 10 of 78 -> Download ? = Exclude? I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
Persist	tent Fields Excluded From S Field EQ2 HASLD EQ10 EQ12	ent Fields ource Object ASSET + + + 1 - 10 of 78 + E+ <u>Download</u> ? = Exclude? V V V V
Persist	tent Fields Excluded From S Field EQ2 HASLD EQ10 EQ12 EQ23	ent Fields ource Object ASSET = Exclude?
Persis	tent Fields Excluded From S Field EQ2 HASLD EQ10 EQ23 EQ1	ent Fields ource Object ASSET 1 - 10 of 78 Download ? Exclude? V V V V V V V V V V V V V
Persis Persist	tent Fields Excluded From S Field EQ2 HASLD EQ10 EQ12 EQ23 EQ1 EQ11	ent Fields ource Object ASSET = Exclude? V V V V V V V V V V V V V
Persis Persist	tent Fields Excluded From S Field EQ2 HASLD EQ10 EQ12 EQ23 EQ1 EQ11 EQ11 EQ3	ent Fields ource Object ASSET 1 - 10 of 78 Download ? Exclude? V V V V V V V V V V V V V
Persist Persis	tent Fields Excluded From S Field EQ2 HASLD EQ10 EQ12 EQ23 EQ1 EQ11 EQ3 LANGCODE	ent Fields

OK Cancel

Again, this is an optional mechanism that can be utilized to reduce the potentially overwhelming number of persistent database fields displayed to the user during Ad Hoc report creation.

Any excluded fields are held in the MAXINTOBJCOLS table. Therefore, only the *persistent* fields that are NOT contained in the MAXINTOBJCOLS table will display as available Category Fields.

Note that even though Non-Persistent fields are displayed in this dialog in the Object Structure application, they can not be used for Reporting Objects. This is because reports execute directly against the database (persistent fields). Reports do not execute against the objects, therefore, non-persistent fields can not be used in Ad Hoc Reporting.

What happens if a ROS for an Application is not defined

Applications do not need to have Reporting Object Structures (ROS) defined. As an example, in 7.1.1.4 only two Reporting Object Structures are defined out of the box (Work Order and Purchase Order). All other Object Structures for Reporting are not defined.

The screen shot below shows an example of what would display if there was *no* Object Structure defined for Reporting. When the user clicks on 'Create Report', the category drilldown only displays a single level. No children or grandchildren categories are enabled. This is essentially the functionality that was delivered in EAM 7.1. Additionally, because the Object Structure is not defined for this application, the top level description shown on the left hand side below displays using the default value of MAXAPPS.DESCRIPTION Detail. In this case, it is 'Job Plans Detail'.

Select Sol	t Sch	edule				8
To apply the box. The q Select the available, a object.	e query and uery is save fields you w expand the d	filter from the curre I to the report, and t int to include in you illdown on the left. `	nt application to your report, the report uses this saved qu r report by using the arrow id You can select only one cate	select the Apply the Current lery every time that you run t cons. To see all of the catego gory that contains a multiple	Query and Filter check he report. ries and fields that are relationship to the main	
Apply the Curr	ent Query ar	d Filter from the Ap	plication? 🗸			
Job Plans D	etsil	Availa	able Fields 🛛 👂 Filter 🗃 👫	📋 🛊 🦆 🗰 1 - 10 of 18	E) Download ? =	
			Field Description	Field Value *		
		4	Calendar	CALENDAR		
		4	Class Structure	CLASSSTRUC	TUREID	
		4	Crew	CREWID		
		4	Downtime	DOWNTIME		
		4	Flow Action	FLOWACTION		
		4	Flow Action Assist	FLOWACTION	ASSIST	
		4	Flow Controlled	FLOWCONTR	OLLED	
		4	Has Long Description?	HASLD		
			Interruptible	INTERRUPTIBL	E	
			JOBPLANID	JOBPLANID		
					Add All	
elected Fields	Filer > A	1514 4141	- 8 of 8 🐳		B Download 1215	
Column O	rder Repor	Label		Field Value	Category	
	1 Job Pl	in		JPNUM	Job Plans Detail	ĺ.
•	2 Descr	otion		DESCRIPTION	Job Plans Detail	82
•	3 Durati	n		JPDURATION	Job Plans Detail	
•	4 Super	risor		SUPERVISOR	Job Plans Detail	5
	5 Status			STATUS	Job Plans Detail	ł.
•	6 Templ	te Type		TEMPLATETYPE	Job Plans Detail	5
	1000 000000000000000000000000000000000			0000		

Best Practices Notes on Creating Report Object Structures

 Individuals creating Report Object Structures must be very familiar with the database structure and maxrelationships. Additional information on this can be obtained from the Entity Relationship Diagram (ERD) for V7. This diagram can be obtained at IBM's OPAL Site at the URL below.

http://www-01.ibm.com/software/brandcatalog/portal/opal/details?catalog.label=1TW10MA25

2. Each Source Object must have a relationship to the Parent Source Object to be valid. Without the relationship, the tables can not be joined, causing the QBR Report to error out.

This is shown by continuing with the Asset ROS. The ATTENDANCE Source Object will be added as a child of ASSET. The ATTENDANCE Table has no relationship to the Asset Parent. When you try to create this ROS entry, no relationships are displayed in the relationship lookup. Therefore, Attendance can not be added as a child of Asset in the ROS.

아ject Structures		Bulletins: (0)	n Go To 💷 Reports 🕈 Start Center	. <u>A P</u> rofile ¥Sign Out
Find: Set	ect Action 🛛 🕑 🎦 🔒 🧶 I 🧔	I ≪		
List Object Structure				
Object Structure REP_ASSET Asset Report	ng Object	Query Only?		User Defined?
Consumed By* REPORTING 🔑 Query Based	Reports	Self Reference?		Configurable?
Outbound Definition Class Inbound Processing Class		Support Flat Structure?		Alias Conflict? [
Source Objects for REP_ASSET	- 1 - 4 of 4 -			Gł
Object Parent Object	Diject Location Path	Relationship		Object Order User I
🕨 ASSET 🔎 🦧 💡	ASSET		A.	1 🗹
LOCATIONS 🔎 ASSET 🎤	ASSET/LOCATIONS	ASSET_LOCATIONS	A	1 🗹
SPAREPART 🔎 ASSET 🎤 🕫	ASSET/SPAREPART	SPAREPART	A.	2 🗹
👻 ATTENDANCE 🔎 🛛 ASSET 🍡	ASSET/ATTENDANCE		<u>م</u>	3 🗹
		Details		-
Object ATTENDANCE		Relationship		\rightarrow
Parent Object ASSET		Unged Order 3	Select Value	
Depending Depending		user benneu?		
Reporting Description				
				Countrast 121 E
				Sectore Contraction
			No rows to displa	y
				Cancel
				Caricer

3. Source Objects must be joined to their parents with relationships where the database sql is defined in its maxrelationship. If the source object has a null database sql, it can not be used in a reporting object structure as it will give invalid results.

This is shown below using our Asset ROS example. A Child Source Object of ASSETMOVEDFLT is added to the Parent Asset Source Object. When clicking on the relationship lookup, notice that its database sql is null. Even though a maxrelationships exists between the two tables, there is no database sql on how those two tables should be joined together. There, it can not be used in a Report Object Structure.

Dbject Structures		🖡 <u>E</u> uleins: (0) 🎓	Go To 🔟 Reports 🌴 Start Center	A Profile X Sign Out	? Help IBM.
Find:	Select Action 🛛 💌 📜 🔜 🧶 I ᡇ 🔿 I 🦳				
List Object Structure					
Object Structure REP_ASSET Asset Rep	orting Object	Query Only?		User Defined?	V
Consumed By* REPORTING & Query Bas	ed Reports	Self Reference?		Configurable?	
Outbound Definition Class	Select Value	pport Flat Structure?		Alias Conflict?	
Inbound Processing Class					
Source Objects for REP_ASSET	1			i	Download
Object Parent Object	Obi	ship		Object Order Use	r Defined?
ASSET 🔎	AS: I Phillips (V) (2) (* + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +		P	1 🗹	Û
LOCATIONS 🔎 ASSET 🥒	AS: Relation RELSQLWHERE	LOCATIONS	P	1 🗹	1
SPAREPART 🔎 ASSET 🍂	ASSETMOVEDIET	ART	P	2 🗹	Û
- ASSETMOVEDE ASSET	AS		P	3 🗹	Û
	Cancel				
Object* ASSETMOVEDE		Relationship	A		
Parent Object ASSET 🥒		Object Order 3			
Object Location Path ASSET/ASSETMOVE	FLT	User Defined? 🗹			
Reporting Description					
					New Row

4. The same object can not be added multiple times in a single Report Object Structure. An example of this is the ROS of Work Order. The parent Source Object is WORKORDER, and has a number of children, including Planned Labor and Actual Labor. Both Planned Labor and Actual Labor, have a child of Labor. However, since an object can only be used once in a ROS, Labor can only be added to either Planned Labor or Actual Labor.

Below is an example of a hierarchy that can not be used as Labor is repeated twice.

Work Order Assets Locations Planned Labor Labor Actual Labor Labor

Below is an example of a hierarchy that can be used: Work Order Assets Locations Planned Labor Labor Actual Labor Planned Material 5. There are no limits to the numbers of source objects (categories) that a client can create for a ROS. As long as each source object has a valid maxrelationship, it can be added as a category.

6. ROS can be created against database views along with database tables, as long as the database views are valid Maximo Objects. An example of a Parent Object that is a database view is TOOLITEM for the application Tools.

Define Database Joins and Cardinality

The Report Object Structures create a hierarchy of related categories for an application. The ROS utilize multiple source objects or categories to form relationships between the multiple tables.

Once the ROS are created, the remaining information on how to build the report sql query for the Ad Hoc report needs to be defined. This information is a very critical component of the process as it determines what data is returned in a report. If it is set incorrectly, the data returned to the user will either be incorrect or un-usable.

The two fields used to complete the ROS information are the Database Join and Cardinality. The values for these fields are held in MAXRELATIONSHIPS.

MAXRELATIONSHIP.CARDINALITY

The Cardinality is a database term defining the type of relationship. In the case of reporting, there are two types: One-to-one or One-to-many. One-to-one relationships are known as Single Relationships, whereas One-to-many are Multiple Relationships.

If it is a single relationship, it means it is a one to one relationship. Using our example, the Asset-Location Relationship is a single relationship as only a single location can be associated to an Asset. This can be seen from within the Asset application in the screen shot below. Only a single location can be associated to the parent Asset.

Assets						
	Find:		👘 🤝 Select Action	M 🖸 🖟	a 🧟 i 🔶	🔶 🛟 i 🏹
List Asset	Spare Parts	Sa	fety Meters Specifica	tions	Features	Relationships
Asset 11430 Status OPERATING Linear?	Centrifug	al Pump	100GPM/60FT HD	т	Site BEDFO	RD P
Parent Maintain Hierarchy?	11400	1	Boiler- 50,000 Lb/Hr/ Gas Fired/ W	ater Tube	3	
Location Bin	BR430	4	Condensate Return Pump- Centrifu	igal/100GPM.		
Rotating Item Condition Code Meter Group	PUMP100	1 1 1	Centrifugal Pump 100 GPM, 60 FT-I	HD		
Usage			<u></u>		-	

If it is a multiple relationship, it means it is a one to many relationship. The Asset-Spare Parts Relationship is a single to multiple relationship. For each asset (single) there can be multiple Spare Parts records (multiple).

(교 Assets		
Find:	🕅 🤝 Select Action 🕑 🚺 📓 🧶 I 💠 💠	। 🛟 🖓 🕎 🖓
List Asset Spare	Parts Safety Meters Specifications Features Re	lationships
Asset 11430 Parent 11400	Centrifugal Pump 100GPM/60FT HD	
Asset	Description	Location
23972	Motor- 10hp/1750rpm/TEFC/254T Frame/440v/3	BR431
Spare Parts Filter > 🗊	Pescription	Quantity
11453	Seal, Mechanical, Self Aligning-1 In ID	1.00
12853	Impeller- 4-1/2 Inch Dia	1.00
XMP-9500 🎤	Gasket- AR46	1.00
G-1000	Bearing, Pillow Block, Fafnir- 1 In ID	2.00
117084	Shaft- 1 Inch Dia	1.00
20778	Housing- Centrifugal Pump	1.00

The MAXRELATIONSHIP.CARDINALITY field is a domain field with three values: Single, Multiple or undefined.

1. The default value is UNDEFINED.

2. If a value is undefined and used in a ROS, the QBR Functionality assumes it is a Multiple Relationship.

Cardinality values of Undefined, Null and Multiple are all treated as Multiple relationships.

During the report creation process, as the user adds fields to the Selected Field Section, their relationships are evaluated to determine if they are single or multiple relationships. Any number of categories with Single Relationships can be added to the QBR. However, only 1 *Category with a Multiple Cardinality Can be included in a Single QBR.*

This is shown below. A user is creating his QBR and has added some fields from the Parent, PO. He then selects a field from the child, PO Line Category. The relationship from PO to PO Line is a Multiple Relationship. The user navigates down to the child PO Terms Category. The relationship from PO to PO Terms is also a Multiple Relationship. So, when the user tries to select fields from the PO Terms Category also, he will receive the error message shown below.

Purchase Order		Available Fields 🛛 🐺 Filter 🗃	🔥 😳 🍦 🤞 💠 1 - 9 of 9 🧇	C Download
PO Companies	-	Field Description	Field Value 🕈	
PO Line Items				
PO Costs PO Terms		🗸 Can Edit	CANEDIT	
		Description	DESCRIPTION	
		Organization	ORGID	
		PO	PONUM	
	10	= POTERMID	POTERMID	8.1
		System Message		
		BMXAA7030I - Both the Selected Fields list selected contain multiple relationships. Only report is allowed. Remove the category fiel	and the category that you y one multiple relationship per lds from the Selected Fields list,	Add A
cted Fields	Benor	BMXAA7030I - Both the Selected Fields list selected contain multiple relationships. Only report is allowed. Remove the category fiel or select a different field.	and the category that you y one multiple relationship per lds from the Selected Fields list,	Add A
cted Fields Fil Column Order	Repor PO	BMXAA7030I - Both the Selected Fields list selected contain multiple relationships. Only report is allowed. Remove the category fiel or select a different field.	and the category that you y one multiple relationship per Ids from the Selected Fields list,	Add A <u>EY Download</u> ? Category Purchase Order
cted Fields Fil Column Order	Repor PO Descr	BMXAA70301 - Both the Selected Fields list selected contain multiple relationships. Only report is allowed. Remove the category fiel or select a different field.	and the category that you y one multiple relationship per Ids from the Selected Fields list, OK	Add A <u>Et Download</u> Category Purchase Order Purchase Order
cted Fields Print Column Order 1 2 3	Repor PO Descr	BMXAA7030I - Both the Selected Fields list selected contain multiple relationships. Only report is allowed. Remove the category fiel or select a different field.	and the category that you y one multiple relationship per lds from the Selected Fields list, OK STATUS	Add A E <u>Download</u> ? Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order
cted Fields Fil Column Order 1 2 3 4	Repor PO Descr Status Follow-up	BMXAA7030I - Both the Selected Fields list selected contain multiple relationships. Only report is allowed. Remove the category fiel or select a different field.	and the category that you y one multiple relationship per lds from the Selected Fields list, OK STATUS FOLLOWUPDATE	Add A Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order
cted Fields Fil Column Order 1 2 3 4 5	Repor PO Descr Status Follow-up Company	BMXAA70301 - Both the Selected Fields list selected contain multiple relationships. Only report is allowed. Remove the category fiel or select a different field.	and the category that you y one multiple relationship per lds from the Selected Fields list, OK STATUS FOLLOWUPDATE VENDOR	Add A Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order
cted Fields Fil Column Order 1 2 3 4 5 6	Repor PO Descr Status Follow-up Company Total Cost	BMXAA70301 - Both the Selected Fields list selected contain multiple relationships. Only report is allowed. Remove the category fiel or select a different field.	and the category that you yone multiple relationship per Ids from the Selected Fields list, OK STATUS FOLLOWUPDATE VENDOR TOTALCOST	Add A EX Download ? Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order
cted Fields > Fil Column Order 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Repor PO Descr Status Follow-up Company Total Cost	BMXAA70301 - Both the Selected Fields list selected contain multiple relationships. Only report is allowed. Remove the category fiel or select a different field.	and the category that you y one multiple relationship per lds from the Selected Fields list, OK STATUS FOLLOWUPDATE VENDOR TOTALCOST SITEID	Add A Category Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order Purchase Order

Again, the Business Rule is Only 1 Category with a Multiple Cardinality can be included in a Single QBR.

MAXRELATIONSHIP.DBJOINREQUIRED

As mentioned earlier, the type of database join between two tables determines the data that is returned in a report. It is probably one of the most important aspects in defining the report relationships.

There are 2 types of joins. A required database join, and an optional, or left outer join. The type of join used in the maxrelationship will determine the type of data returned in the Ad Hoc Report.

If the join is defined as required, or an inner join, a '1' will be used in the MAXRELATIONSHIP.DBJOINREQUIRED field. This type of join will only return results that have corresponding data in both tables. These inner joins limit the data that is returned.

If the join is defined as NOT required, or an outer join, its value will be 'O'. This is the default value. This type of join will return results that may or may not have corresponding data.

Looking further at the relationship between the PO to PO Line table. If the MAXRELATIONSHIP.DBJOINREQUIRED = '1', only POs with entries in the POLINE table will be returned in the report.

If the MAXRELATIONSHIP.DBJOINREQUIRED = '0', any PO - with or without entries in the POLINE table - will be returned in the report.

Using maxdemo data, this can quickly be illustrated by using PO #'s 1000 and 1067. PO 1000 has 3 entries in the POLINE table, whereas 1067 does not have any.

If you execute a QBR Report by selecting field values from both PO and POLINE Categories against these 2 POs

And the DBJOINREQUIRED = '0', 4 results will return (3 for 1000, 1 for 1067) And the DBJOINREQUIRED = '1', 3 results will return (3 for 1000 only)

This is correct behavior.

Notes on Database Joins and Cardinality

1. No UI will be available in this initial release to update these 2 fields. Any updates to these fields must be made thru a SQL Editor.

Therefore, for our Asset ROS example, the scripts below would be used. The Asset to Locations Relationship is an outer join, with a single cardinality. The Asset to Spare Parts Relationship is also an outer join, with a multiple cardinality.

update maxrelationship set dbjoinrequired = '0', cardinality = 'SINGLE' where name = 'ASSET_LOCATIONS' and parent = 'ASSET' and child = 'LOCATIONS';

update maxrelationship set dbjoinrequired = '0', cardinality = 'MULTIPLE' where name = 'SPAREPART' and parent = 'ASSET' and child = 'SPAREPARTS';

Note: For base languages other than English, check the SYNONYMDOMAIN for the correct value of cardinality

select value from synonymdomain where domainid = 'RPTCARDINALITY' and maxvalue = 'MULTIPLE'

2. As an administrator sets the MAXRELATIONSHIP values, he may want to execute QBR reports to insure he is getting back the expected results. However, if he makes a change to either of his fields, he MUST close down the QBR/Reporting Window in order for the changes to take affect.

This occurs because the QBR Functionality caches queries so it doesn't need to re-fetch data that it expects hasn't changed (ex. data from MAXRELATIONSHIP) This is done for performance reasons.
Associate ROS to Application

After the Report Object Structure has been defined, and the maxrelationships updated for their database joins and cardinality, the last thing that must be done is the ROS must be associated with an application. The Application Designer is used to identify which ROS is used for individual applications. It displays a field on its list tab called Report Object. This field is defined as MAXAPPS.REPORTOBJECT, and has a remarks value of 'Report Object Structure used for Ad Hoc Reporting'.

The Report Object field identifies the Object Structure used by the Application for QBR. There are no limitations to the number of Object Structures that can be created for an application - but only one Object Structure can be used for each application's QBR.

The Report Object Field is persistent, not required, and does not have any default values. It is only visible in the App Designer - it is not visible from the individual applications.

To define the Report Object Field, click on the Workspace tab of the application. The 'Report Object' displays at the header level after the 'Main Object' Field, circled in the diagram below.

2			guilletins: (0) 🎓 <u>Go</u> To 🛛 L <u>a R</u> eports 🏶 Start <u>C</u> enter 🔹 <u>P</u> rofile 🔋
Fir	nd: 🚺 🤿 Select Ad	.ction 🔽 🏹 🍙 🗶 I 🍳 🍦 I 🖭 🖅 🔢 📋 🔡 I 💥	* 0 0
Applications Workspi	1CE		
plication ASSET	Assets	Main Object ASSET	Report Object
group	245 VP		
List Asset	Spare Parts Safety Meters	rs Specifications Features Relationships	
🕅 Advanced Search 👻 🛛	🗟 Save Query 🔻 🔗 Bookmarks		
ssets 👻 Filter 🖓 💷	* * * *		De download 🖓 🗄 🗖
ablebody	Description	Location Parent Rotating Item	Linear?
Asset			and a second sec

A lookup is available on this field, which displays all Report Object Structures. (This is defined as maxintobject.intobjectname where the use with domain value is REPORTING.)

ation ASSET	Assets	Main Object ASSET	Report Object REP_ASSE
st Asset	Spare Parts Safety Meters	Specifications Features Relationships	R Select Value
<u>ets</u> i ≫ Filter : d Ra : ∋body	⊒		Object Structure Description
Asset	Description	Location Parent Rotatin	REP ASSET Asset Reporting Object

After asso	ciating th	e ROS to th	e application, it display	s on the A	pplications Tab a	s below.
Application Des	signer		BMXAA42051 - Record has	Bulletins: been saved.	(0) 🎓 💁 To 💷 <u>R</u> eports 🏚 Start <u>C</u> er	nter 🎿 <u>P</u> rofile 🏼 X Sign Out
	Find:	🕅 🔝 Select Action	💌 🖞 🗟 🖉 i 🌢 i 🔁 🌛 i 🗄	3 88 i 🛠 🌾 j	0	
Applications W	forkspace					
🐙 Filter > 👘 👘 🔶	↓ ⊕ 1 - 1 of 1 ⊕					E
Application	Description			Main Object	Report Object	Original Application
ASSET	Assets			ASSET	REP_ASSET	

		× I * * I 🗷 🛩 💷	0 0 1 × 2 0 0		
Applications V	/orkspace				
🛩 Filter 🗉 👘 🎒 🔅	↓ ↓ 1 - 1 of 1 ↓				
Application *	Description		Main Object	Report Object	Original Applicatio
=asset					-
ASSET	Assets		ASSET	REP_ASSET	
Select Records					

And then will be available from the 'Create Report' Window of the Asset application.

	Overy Based Report						-
	- addry based report						
Ist Asse		-					
Advanced Sea	Select Sort		Schedule				
sets > Filter set	To apply the box. The que Select the file available, exp object.	query ry is s Ids yo pand t	and filter from th saved to the rep to want to includ he drilldown on	ne current application ort, and the report use e in your report by us the left. You can selec	to your report, select th is this saved query eve ing the arrow icons. To ct only one category tha	e Apply the Current Query an ry time that you run the repor see all of the categories and t contains a multiple relations	nd Filter check t. fields that are hip to the main
	Query to lies in the	Doine					
Select Records	Apply the Currer	t Que	ry and Filter from	n the Application?	7		
	Asset	222500		Available Fields		1 - 1 - 10 of 61 - m - m	
	Locations	4	_	Field Descript	ion	Field	Value A
	Spare Parts			Ancestor	<u></u>	ANC	ESTOR
				Asset		ASS	ETID
				Asset Tag		ASS	ETTAG
				🗸 Туре		ASS	ETTYPE
				ASSETUID		ASS	ETUID
				a Automatically	Generate Work Orders	AUT	OWOGEN
				Bin		BINN	UM
				Budgeted		BUD	GETCOST
				Calendar		CAL	NUM
				🗸 Changed By		СНА	NGEBY
							Add All
	Selected Fields	FILE	>// D + -	🌢 🐳 1 - 7 of 7 🥪		R1.0	ownload 17
	Column (Order	Report Label			Field Value	Category
	e	1	Asset			ASSETNUM	Asset
	±	2	Description			DESCRIPTION	Asset
	÷	3	Location			LOCATION	Asset
	*	4	Parent			PARENT	Asset
	÷	5	Rotating Item			ITEMNUM	Asset
	술	6	Linear			ISLINEAR	Asset
	*	7	Site			SITEID	Asset
-							

Notes on Associating ROS to Applications

The same ROS can be associated with multiple applications, as long as the ROS has the same main table as the application. The example below shows the REP_WO ROS applied to both the Quick Reporting and Work Order Tracking applications, as both share the same main table (object) or Workorder.

Application Des	signer		<mark>₽</mark> <u>B</u> ulletins: (0)	➢ Go To <u>IIII R</u> eports ♣ Sta
	🍸 Find: 💦 🧖 Select Action	💌 🕽 🗟 🖉 I 🌢 🖗 I 🔁 🌫 🗐	1 81 × × J	D
Applications W	/orkspace			
Filter > 🚯 👘 🔶	🎍 🐳 1 - 2 of 2 🗰			
Application +	Description		Main Object	Report Object
				rep_wo
QUICKREP	Quick Reporting		WORKORDER	REP_WO
WOTRACK	Work Order Tracking		WORKORDER	REP_WO
Select Records				

Adding QBR Functionality to New or Cloned Applications

Some applications may not be enabled for Ad Hoc Reporting out of the box because they may be administrative intensive, a non-standard application or may utilize complex methods for determining its main table. Examples of some of the applications not enabled for Ad Hoc Reporting include Sets, Currency Codes, Exchange Rates, and Self Service Applications.

However, you may want to enable QBR Functionality for one of these applications, or for a new or cloned application that you have created. The steps below detail an example of how to do this using the Master PM Application as an example. The screen shot below shows that the QBR functionality is not available for this application.

	Find:	📕 🕅 🤝 Sel	t Action 💉 🙀 📄 🧟	1 🔹 🔶 1 🥎
List	Master PM Frequency	Season	Update Associated PMs	
			Attachment Library/Folders >	
25916		~ ~ ~	•	
Adva ster	nced Search 🔻 📾 Save Query PMs 🏏 Filter - 🏘 🖾 🔹 🐳	V P Bookmarks	,	

Note: In order to do this, the application must have the RUNREPORTS Security option enabled. If this security option is not available, it must first be added before adding the Create Reports Option.

First, verify that RUNREPORTS Security Option is enabled for the application. To do this, access Application Designer and filter for the application. From the action menu, select Add/Modify Signature Options. Under Description – enter a value of report to see if any Sig Options are enabled.

Application Designer			[₿] <u>B</u> ulletins: (0)
🔽 Find: 🛃 🖗 😎 Se	elect Action	🔒 🧶 🍳 🍦 1 🔁 😅 🗄 🗄	1 🗙 🎸 🗊 🗓
Applications Workspace	Add/Modify Signature O	ptions	🗆 : ? : 🗵
Application MASTERPM Master PM			
page tabgroup List Master PM Frequency Season M Advanced Search Save Query Master PMs Filter tablebody Sescription	Add/Modify Signature 0 <u>Option</u> SEARCHMORE DUPLICATE UPDASSOCPM CREATEKPI READ NSERT SAVE CLEAR PREVIOUS	ptions Filter do 1 1 - 10 of 22 Description report More Search Fields Duplicate Master PM Update Associated PMs Create KPI Read access to Master Preventive Maintenanc New Master PM Save Master PM Clear Changes Previous Master PM	E* <u>Download</u> ? =
	▶ NEXT	Next Master PM	New Row
	Advanced signature op	uons	OK Cancel

In this case, no sig options are enabled, so they all will be created – including the Prerequisite – Run Reports.

Application Designer		♥ <u>B</u> ulletins: (0)
Find: S	ielect Action 🛛 😧 🛃 🥥 I 🌳 🍄 l 🔝 😒 I 🞚 🛽	1 8 🕅 🛠 🖌 D Ď
Applications Workspace	R Add/Modify Signature Options	I i ? i 🛛
Application MASTERPM Master PM		
page tabgroup List Master PM Frequency Season Master PMs Save Query Master PMs Filter tablebody Description	Add/Modify Sign. Wre Options Filter > dh Image: Constraint of the second s	New Row
		OK Cancel

Click New Row, and add the first sig option as shown below for: RUNREPORTS

Application I	Designer				
	Find:	n 👎 Select Action	💌 🎦 🗔	214 🖗 1	20
Applications	Workspace				
Applica	ation MASTERPM Ma	ster PM			
	Add/Modify Signature Optio	ns			? 🗆 🖂
tabgroup					
List					
M Advanced	Add/Modify Signature Opti	ons 🛛 💙 Filter > 🎁 🕴 🗛	♦ ♦ 1 - 1 of 1 ♦	Download	? =
Master PMs	Option	Description			
tablebody		report Run Reports			a
Master PM	Online				
i	Description	Run Reports		1	
	Option Also Grants]	
	Option Also Revokes	CREATEREPT]	
	Prerequisite		E standard Each] 1.42 🗖	
			c-signature chao Vis	ible?	
	3				
	Advanced Signature Option			New R	w
1	Advanced Signature Option	15			1
					ncer

Repeat this process for the remaining two sig options: DELETEREPT and CREATEREPT

4	dd/Modify Signature Optio	ns	2 2
d	//Modify Signature Opti	ons 🎐 Filter 🖓 🖗 🛊 🐳 🜩 1 - 2 of 2 🔿 🖹	Download
	Option	Description	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	report	
	RUNREPORTS	Run Reports	
	DELETEREPT		
	Ontion	DELETEREPT	
	Description	Delete Report	
	Ontion Alon Cranto		
	Option Also Grants		
	Option Also Revokes		
	Prerequisite		_
		E-signature Enabled?	
		Visible?	\checkmark

Add/Modify Signature Options

	Option	Description		
		report		
į.	RUNREPORTS	Run Reports		ĺ
2	DELETEREPT	Delete Report		í.
	CREATEREPT	Create Ad Hoc QBR Reports		Į.
	Description Option Also Grants	Create Ad Hoc QBR Reports]	
	Option Also Revokes	PUBLICREPT		L .
	Prerequisite	RUNREPORTS		L .
		E pignaturo Engl	aled2	I .

Click OK and save the changes.

🗄 i ? i 🛛

Next, add the Run Report Action to the Action menu for the Master PM application. Select "Add/Modify Select Action Menu". Input values as shown below and save.

Application Designer		
Find:	n 🙀 🤝 Select Action 🛛 💆 🔒 🧶 🛛 🌲 💌 📰 📳	88 💥 🏄
Applications Workspace	R Add/Modify Select Action Menu	□ ? ⊠
Application MASTERPM		
page	Add/Modify Select Action Menu 📪 Filter 🖓 👘 👘 🕹 🖉 2 - 11 of 12 🚓 🗳 Dea	unload 2 E
List Master PM Frequent	Key Value Header Description	
M Advanced Search V Save Oud	CRTASSOCPM D	â
	AM40	
Master PMs 🔷 Filter dR 🗇 🔶	BOOKMARK D	<u>_</u>
tablebody	DELETE P	1
<u>Master PM</u>	DUPLICATE P	Û
ii	MANAGELIB 🔎	Û
	MANAGEFOLD D	Û
	ASSOCFOLD D	Û
	AIM38 Attachment Library/Folders	Û
	RUNREPORTS P	Û
	Element Type* OPTION	New Row
		NEW KOW
	ОК	Cancel

Once the new report security options and menu option have been enabled, follow the standard Application Designer Procedures for enabling the application updates. You can then grant security privileges to your selected Security Groups via the Security Group application.

Applications not enabled for QBR Reporting - Out of the Box

Some applications are not enabled for Ad Hoc Reporting because they may be a nonstandard application or they utilize complex methods for determining its main table. Therefore, the 'create reports' functionality has not been enabled for these applications.

The applications that are not currently enabled for Query Based Reporting include:

Under Administration Sets Bulletin Board Communication Templates Adapter Conversion Manufacturer Conversion **Operations System Conversion** Processor Conversion Software Conversion Software Suite Setup Software Usage Setup **Reconciliation Tasks** Task Filters Link Rules Comparison Rules **CI Link Results CI** Reconciliation Results Conditional Expression Manager **CI** Types Work View

<u>Under Assets</u> Software License View

<u>Under Contracts</u> Terms and Conditions

<u>Under Financials</u> Currency Codes Exchange Rates Cost Management

<u>Under Integration</u> Object Structures Publish Channels Invocation Channels Enterprise Services Web Services Library End Points External Systems Logical Management Operations Integration Modules Launch in Context Message Tracking Message Reprocessing

Under Inventory

Condition Codes Storerooms

Under Planning: Safety Precautions

<u>Under PM"</u> Master PM

<u>Under Purchasing</u> Companies Company Master Terms and Conditions

<u>Under Self-Service</u> Self Service - Desk Top Requisitions Self Service - Service Requests

Under Work Order: Assignment Manager

Under Service Desk: Ticket Templates

Under System Configuration System Properties Logging Domains Application Designer Communication Templates Actions Roles Escalations Work Flow Administrator Cron Task Setup Email Listeners Web Services Library Launch in Context Migration Groups

Additional References

There are a large number of report reference materials available for you. These guides include all areas of reporting from Upgrades, Administration, Configuration, Design, Development and Execution. To locate the latest versions of these guides, access this IBM Maximo Wiki Page:

https://www.ibm.com/developerworks/wikis/display/maximo/Report+Reference+Materials

or its shortened url of http://bit.ly/niokIv

This page contains the latest listing of report reference materials, including description, revision levels and hyperlinks to the documentation

Report Reference Materials										
View Edit Attachments (0) Info				🔞 Brows	e Space 📄	Add Page	Add News			
Added by <u>PamDenny</u> , last edited by <u>PamDenny</u> on Jan 05, 2012 (<u>view.change</u>) Labels: (None) <u>EDIT</u>							☆ 🖂			
IBM. Maximo /	Asset Management									
Home > Reports > Report User Documentation										
Report User Documentation										
The tables below detail the report documentation currently available. This documentation is categorized into detail, planning, development, customization and integration guides. Additionally, an overview of the guide is provided, along with its current revision level. All documentation referenced is available on IBM's support site at the url below by searching on the document reference number or title. http://www-947.ibm.com/support/entry/portal/Overview/Software/Tivoli/Maximo Asset Management • 1 Report Detail Guides • 2 Report Detail Guides • 3 Report Development Guides • 5 Report Integration Guides • 5 Report Detail Guides										
Document Name	Description	Version	Reference Number	Revision #	Last Posti Date	ng BiLog	g* Posting			
V75 ReportBooklet	Contains listings, file names, descriptions, details on parameters, formatting (grouping, sorting) and a pdf copy of each of the OOB (Out of the Box) Delivered Reports.	7.5	1497942		4/28/2011	Deliver	red Reports			
V71 ReportBooklet	Contains listings, file names, descriptions, details on parameters, formatting (grouping, sorting) and a pdf copy of each of the OOB (Out of the Box) Delivered Reports.	7.1	1305005	4	12/28/2009					

Revision Levels:

Revision 5 - September 2012 Updates include (1) Added information on Security Best Practices (2) Added reference material section (3) Included text for error messages for searching ease (4) Miscellaneous text updates for clarification

Revision 4 - February 2010 More details on exporting Ad Hoc Reports to BIRT Designer - page 41

Revision 3 - January 2010 Format updates

Revision 2 - December 2009 Updated section on how to enable QBR Functionality for new or cloned applications beginning on page 70

Revision 1 -October 2009 (1) Included additional details on why no limitations on number of fields added to QBR Report on page 30

Initial Release - September 2009
(1) Updated User Error Message shown on page 30 for Base Services 7.1.1.5 Release (2)
Added section on how QBR can be enabled for new or cloned application.

Notices

This information was developed for products and services offered in the U.S.A.

IBM may not offer the products, services, or features discussed in this document in other countries. Consult your local IBM representative for information on the products and services currently available in your area. Any reference to an IBM product, program, or service is not intended to state or imply that only that IBM product, program, or service may be used. Any functionally equivalent product, program, or service that does not infringe any IBM intellectual property right may be used instead. However, it is the user's responsibility to evaluate and verify the operation of any non-IBM product, program, or service.

IBM may have patents or pending patent applications covering subject matter described in this document. The furnishing of this document does not grant you any license to these patents. You can send license inquiries, in writing, to:

IBM Director of Licensing IBM Corporation North Castle Drive Armonk, NY 10504-1785 U.S.A.

The following paragraph does not apply to the United Kingdom or any other country where such provisions are inconsistent with local law: INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORPORATION PROVIDES THIS PUBLICATION "AS IS" WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Some states do not allow disclaimer of express or implied warranties in certain transactions, therefore, this statement may not apply to you.

This information could include technical inaccuracies or typographical errors. Changes are periodically made to the information herein; these changes will be incorporated in new editions of the publication. IBM may make improvements and/or changes in the product(s) and/or the program(s) described in this publication at any time without notice.

Any references in this information to non-IBM Web sites are provided for convenience only and do not in any manner serve as an endorsement of those Web sites. The materials at those Web sites are not part of the materials for this IBM product and use of those Web sites is at your own risk.

IBM may use or distribute any of the information you supply in any way it believes appropriate without incurring any obligation to you.

Information concerning non-IBM products was obtained from the suppliers of those products, their published announcements or other publicly available sources. IBM has not tested those products and cannot confirm the accuracy of performance, compatibility or any other claims related to non-IBM products. Questions on the capabilities of non-IBM products should be addressed to the suppliers of those products.

This information contains examples of data and reports used in daily business operations. To illustrate them as completely as possible, the examples include the names of individuals, companies, brands, and products. All of these names are fictitious and any similarity to the names and addresses used by an actual business enterprise is entirely coincidental.

<u>Trademarks</u>

IBM, the IBM logo, and ibm.com are trademarks or registered trademarks of International Business Machines Corp., registered in many jurisdictions worldwide. Other product and service names might be trademarks of IBM or other companies. A current list of IBM trademarks is available on the Web at "<u>Copyright and trademark information</u>" at <u>www.ibm.com/legal/copytrade.shtml</u>.

Microsoft, Windows, Windows NT, and the Windows logo are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States, other countries, or both